ANNUAL REPORT

OF

VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

2023-2024
- . <
~ A
e
T o O
1L * "1"‘1:‘ : P @
T i = )
! Fr— TR )
L L
L —4:1 =/ |
L J[ T A [
3 " i l’;u =] T i"- {
- l 3 J 1 I’\' s

C/o Marketcity Resources Pvt Ltd, R R Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills
Estate, Opp Shakti Mills, Mumbai- 400011
Tel. No.:022 3001 6600; E-mail: corpaffairs@phoenixmills.com
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC165253



mailto:corpaffairs@phoenixmills.com

VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
C/o Marketcity Resources Pvt Ltd, R R Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen
Mills Estate, Opp Shakti Mills, Mumbai- 400011
Tel. No.:022 3001 6600; E-mail: corpaffairs@phoenixmills.com
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC165253

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 18""Annual General Meeting of the members of Vamona Developers
Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, September 06, 2024 at 11.15 a.m. (IST)
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact the
following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditor’s thereon.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated

to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. Toappointa Director in place of Mr. Lalit Jain (DIN: 08715049), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Lalit Jain (DIN: 08715049), who retires by rotation and being eligible for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Appointment of Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094), nominated by The Phoenix Mills
Limited, as a Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 161 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and
Quialification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Board of Directors, Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094), nominated by The
Phoenix Mills Limited, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect
from July 15, 2024 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company and who is eligible for being appointed and has consented to act as a Director of the
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Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board
of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard and further to execute all necessary
documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of foregoing resolutions, certified to be true by any
Director of the Company, may be furnished to any person(s) and/or entities as may be required.”

4. Appointment of Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643), nominated by The Phoenix Mills Limited as a
Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 161 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Board of Directors, Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643), nominated by The
Phoenix Mills Limited, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect
from July 15, 2024 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company and who is eligible for being appointed and has consented to act as a Director of the
Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board
of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard and further to execute all necessary
documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of foregoing resolutions, certified to be true by any
Director of the Company, may be furnished to any person(s) and/or entities as may be required.”
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5. Approval for appointment of Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) as an Independent Woman
Director of the Company

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force], Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110), who was appointed as an Additional Director
(Independent and Non-Executive) of the Company, with effect from March 30, 2024 under
Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office
upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, and who is qualified for being
appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of whom the Company has received a
Notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing her candidature for
the office of Director, being so eligible, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director
of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a first term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from March 30, 2024 to March 29, 2029 (both days inclusive);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Shweta Vyas shall be eligible to the sitting fees amounting to
Rs. 20,000 per Board meeting;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board
of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard and further to execute all necessary
documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of foregoing resolutions, certified to be true by any
Director of the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company, may be furnished to any
person(s) and/or entities as may be required.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Vamona Developers Private Limited
N

oo &=

Aditya Singh Solanki
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai

Date

July 19, 2024
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NOTES

1.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) allowed conducting General Meeting through video
conferencing (“VC”) or other audio-visual means (“OAVM”) without the physical presence of
Members at a common venue. Accordingly, MCA vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020,
20/2020, 02/2021, 02/2022, 10/2022, 11/2022 and 09/2023 dated April 8, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, May 05, 2022, December 28, 2022 and September 25,
2023 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’ or
‘Meeting’) through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’),
without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), and MCA Circulars, the 18" AGM of the
Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Friday, September 06, 2024 at 11.15 A.M. (IST).

Pursuant to the above mentioned MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members is not
required at the AGM, and attendance of the Members through VC/OAVM will be counted for

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Since this 18" AGM is being held through VC/OAVM pursuant to the applicable MCA and SEBI
Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility
for appointment of Proxies by the Members will not be available for the 18" AGM and hence

the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

Non-Individual members intending to send their Authorised Representative(s) to attend the
Meeting are requested to send a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution / Letter
of Authority along with specimen signature(s) of the Authorised Representative(s) authorised
under the said Board Resolution / Letter of Authority to attend and vote on their behalf at the

meeting.

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification/ Guidance on applicability of
Secretarial Standards - 2 dated 15™ April, 2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM
shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the
deemed venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is

not annexed to this Notice.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the Special Businesses as set out in the Notice is annexed hereto and forms

part of this Notice.

The information required to be provided under the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings,
regarding the Directors who are proposed to be appointed/re-appointed (item 2, 3, 4 and 5) is

annexed hereto.
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10.

11.

Members are permitted to join the AGM through VC/OAVM, 15 minutes before the scheduled

time of commencement of AGM and during the AGM.

M/s. B’ S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 101248W/W-100022), were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on
November 30, 2021 for a period of 5 consecutive years from 15" Annual General Meeting till
the conclusion of the 20" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2026,

in accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013.

the date of AGM, and also during the AGM.

Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Estate, Opp. Shakti Mills, Mumbai — 400 011.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which
directors are interested maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
relevant documents referred to in this Notice of AGM, will be available electronically for
inspection by the Members without any fee from the date of circulation of this notice up to

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice is available for inspection without any
fee by members, in physical or electronic form at the Registered office of the Company and
will also be made during the course of the meeting, on all working days (except Saturdays,
Sundays and Public Holidays),up to the date of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and copies
thereof shall also be made available for inspection in physical or electronic form at the
Registered Office of the Company situated at C/o Marketcity Resources Private Limited, R.R.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
Item No. 3

In terms of the Clause 5.2.1(a) of Joint Venture Agreement dated June 1, 2021 entered into by and
between the Company, The Phoenix Mills Limited (“PML”) and Reco Zinnia Private Limited (“RZPL"),
PML is entitled to nominate atleast 4 (Four) directors on the Board of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee had appointed Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) as an Additional
Director of the Company, categorized as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation on July 15, 2024.

As per Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) being Additional Director, shall hold office upto the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company and is eligible to be appointed as Director of the Company.

The Company has received notice from The Phoenix Mills Limited, a shareholder, under Section 160
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating its intention to propose Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN:
09506094) as Director of the Company.

Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) has provided his consent to be appointed as a Director of the
Company and a declaration stating that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

A brief profile of Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) is mentioned as follows:

Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan is a Qualified Chartered Accountant and he is Vice President - Finance at The
Phoenix Mills Limited. He brings on board a rich and varied experience of more than 17 years of
progressive experience in managing finance teams within large organization. Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan
possesses good business acumen, solid leadership, communication, and interpersonal skills to
establish rapport with all job grades of employees, management, and external stakeholder. He has
working experience in retail, real estate, leisure & entertainment, hospitality and insurance industry.

Further, Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan has worked with Companies like Deloitte, Jardine Lloyd Thompson,
llyas & Mustafa Galadari Group, Al Hamra etc.

Further details relating to Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) including his qualifications, other
Directorships, membership of Committees of other Boards are given in Annexure forming part of this
Explanatory Statement of the Notice. This explanatory statement together with the accompanying
Notice and annexure thereto may also be regarded as a disclosure under Secretarial Standard-2 on
Board Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, every Director of the Company shall be
appointed in the General Meeting. Therefore, approval of Members is sought by the way of an
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Ordinary Resolution by the Company to Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) on the Board of the
Company.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the
Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Save and except, Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) and his relatives to the extent of their
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Company and her relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Item No. 4

In terms of the Clause 5.2.1(a) of Joint Venture Agreement dated June 1, 2021 entered into by and
between the Company, The Phoenix Mills Limited (“PML”) and Reco Zinnia Private Limited (“RZPL"),
PML is entitled to nominate atleast 4 (Four) directors on the Board of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee had appointed Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) as an Additional Director
of the Company, categorized as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company, liable to
retire by rotation on July 15, 2024.

As per Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company, Ms.
Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) being Additional Director, shall hold office upto the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company and is eligible to be appointed as Director of the Company.

The Company has received notice from The Phoenix Mills Limited, a shareholder, under Section 160
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) stating its intention to propose Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN:
08730643) as Director of the Company.

Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) has provided her consent to be appointed as a Director of the
Company and a declaration stating that he is not disqualified to be appointed as Director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

A brief profile of Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) is mentioned as follows:

Ms. Neha Kapoor is a retail business specialist with over 21 years of experience in mall leasing, retail
revenue maximisation, brand management, retail operations, sales and business development. She
demonstrates exceptional brand management and negotiation skills. Neha holds an MBA degree in
Business Strategy from Kingston University, London.

She joined Phoenix Mills in December 2011 and is presently in a leasing leadership role and responsible
for delivering a large lease portfolio across multiple malls within The Phoenix Group. She leads a multi-
disciplinary team to maximise and achieve organisational goals.
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Further details relating to Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) including his qualifications, other
Directorships, membership of Committees of other Boards are given in Annexure forming part of this
Explanatory Statement of the Notice. This explanatory statement together with the accompanying
Notice and annexure thereto may also be regarded as a disclosure under Secretarial Standard-2 on
Board Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, every Director of the Company shall be
appointed in the General Meeting. Therefore, approval of Members is sought by the way of an
Ordinary Resolution by the Company to Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) on the Board of the
Company.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the
Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Save and except, Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) and his relatives to the extent of their
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Company and her relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Item No. 5

As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the following class or classes of companies shall have
atleast two Independent directors:

e the Public Companies having paid up share capital of ten crore rupees or more; or

e the Public Companies having turnover of one hundred crore rupees or more; or

e the Public Companies which have, in aggregate, outstanding loans, debentures and
deposits, exceeding fifty crore rupees.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee vide Circular Resolution dated March 27, 2024 and approved on March
27,20224had appointed Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) as an Additional Director of the Company,
in the category of a Non- Executive Independent Woman Director on the Board of the Company, not
liable to retire by rotation, for a for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from March 30,
2024 and ending on March 29, 2029.

As per Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Articles of Association of the
Company, Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) being Additional Director, shall hold office upto the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and is eligible to be appointed as Director of
the Company.

The Company has received notices from The Phoenix Mills Limited, a shareholder, under Section 160
of the Act stating its intention to propose Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) as an Independent
Woman Director of the Company.
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Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) has provided her consent to be appointed as an Independent
Woman Director of the Company, a declaration stating that she is not disqualified to be appointed
as Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and a declaration of
Independence in accordance with Section 149(6) of the Act .

A brief profile of Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) is mentioned as follows:

Ms. Shweta Viyas has graduated with a bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University of Mumbai
and also holds a post graduate diploma in business management from the K.J. Somaiya Institute of
Management Studies and Research. She joined Barclays W&IM in year 2008 and currently, she is
Assistant Vice President of the W&IM division of Barclays in India. In the past, she has also worked
with Standard Chartered Wholesale Banking from the year 2005 to 2008, where she moved within the
organisation and worked in numerous functions.

She has been a meditation coach since 2010 and is actively involved with the corporate training arm
of an NGO namely Art of Living foundation, where she conducts programmes for stress management,
mindfulness and work life balance for corporates. Some of the programmes include Achieving
Personal Excellence (APEX) and MISME programmes which are designed for small and medium sized
companies.

Further details relating to Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) including her qualifications, other
Directorships, membership of Committees of other Boards are given in Annexure forming part of this
Explanatory Statement of the Notice. This explanatory statement together with the accompanying
Notice and annexure thereto may also be regarded as a disclosure under Secretarial Standard-2 on
Board Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, every Director of the Company shall be
appointed in the General Meeting. Therefore, approval of Members is sought by the way of Ordinary
Resolution by the Company to Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) on the Board of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the
Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Save and except, Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) and her relatives to the extent of their
shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
of the Company and her relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
in the Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
[Pursuant to Secretarial Standard (SS-2) on General Meetings]

Name of Director

Name of Director

Name of Director

Name of Director

Particulars
Name Mr. Lalit Jain Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan Ms. Neha Kapoor Ms. Shweta Vyas
DIN 08715049 09506094 08730643 06996110
Age 41 years 37 years 42 years 43 years
Nationality Indian Indian Indian Indian
Date of first appointment | August 04, 2023 July 15, 2024 July 15, 2024 March 30, 2024

on the Board

Qualifications

Chartered Accountant

Chartered Accountant

MBA degree in Business Strategy

Bachelor Degree in Commerce and
Diploma in Business Management

Experience and Expertise

Mr. Lalit Jain brings on board a
rich and varied experience of
more than 15 years in Financial
Accounting, Corporate Finance,
Direct & Indirect Taxation,
Financial Analysis etc. He has
worked with companies like
Mirae Asset Global Investments
(India) Pvt Ltd, Mahima Real
Estate Private Limited, Besant
Group, XRBIA  Developers
Limited, etc.

Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan is a
Qualified Chartered
Accountant and he is Vice
President - Finance at The
Phoenix Mills Limited. He
brings on board a rich and
varied experience of more than
17 years of progressive
experience in managing
finance teams within large
organization. Mr. Siddhesh
Pradhan possesses  good
business acumen, solid
leadership, communication,

Ms. Neha Kapoor is a retail
business specialist with over 21

years of experience in mall
leasing, retail revenue
maximisation, brand

management, retail operations,
sales and business development.
She demonstrates exceptional
brand management and
negotiation skills. Neha holds an
MBA degree in Business Strategy
from Kingston University,
London.

Ms. Shweta Vyas has graduated with
a bachelor’s degree in commerce
from the University of Mumbai and
also holds a post graduate diploma
in business management from the
K.J. Somaiya Institute of
Management Studies and Research.
She joined Barclays W&IM in year
2008 and currently, she is Assistant
Vice President of the W&IM division
of Barclays in India. In the past, she
has also worked with Standard
Chartered Wholesale Banking from
the year 2005 to 2008, where she




and interpersonal skills to
establish rapport with all job
grades of employees,
management, and external
stakeholder. He has working
experience in retail, real estate,

leisure &  entertainment,
hospitality and  insurance
industry.

Further, Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan
has worked with Companies
like Deloitte, Jardine Lloyd
Thompson, llyas & Mustafa
Galadari Group, Al Hamra etc.

She joined Phoenix Mills in
December 2011 and is presently
in a leasing leadership role and
responsible for delivering a large
lease portfolio across multiple
malls within The Phoenix Group.
She leads a multi-disciplinary
team to maximise and achieve
organisational goals.

moved within the organisation and
worked in numerous functions.

She has been a meditation coach
since 2010 and is actively involved
with the corporate training arm of
an NGO namely Art of Living
foundation, where she conducts
programmes for stress
management, mindfulness and
work life balance for corporates.
Some of the programmes include
Achieving  Personal  Excellence
(APEX) and MSME programmes
which are designed for small and
medium sized companies.

Capacity Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Independent
Woman Director
Details of Directorships | ¢ Roomy Construction e Classic Mall Development | ¢ Insight Mall Developers Private | ¢ Vamona Developers  Private
held in other companies Company Private Limited Company Limited Limited Limited
e Phlox Developers Private e Alyssum Developers Private | ® Passport ~ Paradise  Private | e Offbeat Developers Private
Limited Limited Limited Limited
e Upal Hotels Private Limited | ® Insight Mall  Developers | ® Stratix ~ Hospitality ~ Private | e Alliance Spaces Private Limited
e Gangetic Developers Private Private Limited Limited e Island Star Mall Developers
Limited e Sparkle One Mall Developers | ® Bellona Hospitality = Services Private Limited

e Graceworks Realty & Leisure
Private Limited

Private Limited

Limited

e Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited




e Alliance Spaces Private
Limited

e Finesse Mall and Commercial
Real Estate Private Limited

e Offbeat Developers Private
Limited

e Phoenix Logistics and
Industrial ~ Parks  Private
Limited

e Mugwort Land Holdings
Private Limited

e Pinnacle Real Estate

Development Private Limited

e Phoenix Digital Technologies
Private Limited

e Savannah Phoenix Private
Limited

e Calypso Retail Private Limited

e Big Apple Real Estate Private
Limited

e Acme Hospitality Services
Private Limited

e Winston Hotels  Private
Limited
e Columbus Investment

Advisory Private Limited

e Astrea Real Estate
Developers Private Limited

e Bartraya Mall Development
Company Private Limited

e Alyssum Developers
Limited

Private

e Plutocrat Commercial Real Estate
Private Limited

e Palladium Constructions Private
Limited

e The Phoenix Mills Limited

e Mindstone  Mall  Developers
Private Limited

Membership  in  the
Committees of the Boards
of companies

e Audit Committee
- Vamona Developers

Private Limited

e Audit Committee
- Alyssum  Developers
Private Limited

NIL

e Audit Committee
- Vamona Developers Private
Limited




- Offbeat Developers
Private Limited

Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

- Vamona Developers
Private Limited

- Offbeat Developers
Private Limited

Corporate Social

- Sparkle One Mall

Developers Private
Limited
Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

Responsibility Committee
- Vamona Developers
Private Limited
- Offbeat Developers
Private Limited

- Alyssum  Developers
Private Limited
- Sparkle One Mall

Developers Private
Limited
Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee
- Classic Mall

Development
Company Limited

- Offbeat Developers Private
Limited

- Island Star Mall Developers
Private Limited

- Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure
Limited

- Plutocrat Commercial Real
Estate Private Limited

- The Phoenix Mills Limited

- Mindstone Mall Developers
Private Limited

e Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

- Vamona Developers Private
Limited

- Offbeat Developers Private
Limited

- Island Star Mall Developers
Private Limited

- Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure
Limited

- Plutocrat Commercial Real
Estate Private Limited

- The Phoenix Mills Limited

- Mindstone Mall Developers
Private Limited




e Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

- Vamona Developers Private
Limited

- Offbeat Developers Private
Limited

- lIsland Star Mall Developers
Private Limited

- Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure
Limited

- The Phoenix Mills Limited

e Audit Committee Audit Committee NIL e Nomination and Remuneration
- Vamona Developers Alyssum  Developers Committee
Private Limited Private Limited - The Phoenix Mills Limited
- Offbeat Developers Sparkle  One  Mall
Chairman in the Private Limited Developers Private
Committees of the Boards Limited
of companies e Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee
- Vamona Developers
Private Limited
- Offbeat Developers
Private Limited
Number of shares held in | NIL NIL NIL NIL
the Company
Last drawn Remuneration | NA NA NA NA




Terms and Conditions of
Appointment /
Reappointment

Non-Executive Director, liable
to retire by rotation.

Non-Executive Director, liable
to retire by rotation

Non-Executive Director, liable to
retire by rotation

Non-Executive Independent
Woman Director, liable to retire by
rotation

Details of Remuneration | NA NA NA Sitting fees for attending Board
sought to be paid Meeting.
Number of Board | 4 outof 4 NA NA NA

meetings attended during
financial year 2023-24

Relationship with other
Directors /  KMPs'/
Manager

Not Related to any Director /
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company

Not Related to any Director /
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company

Not Related to any Director /
Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Not Related to any Director / Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Company

Summary of performance
evaluation report

The Board evaluated
performance of Mr. Lalit Jain
and rated his satisfactory on all
parameters and recommended
his re-appointment.

NA

NA

The Board evaluated performance
of Ms. Shweta Vyas and rated her
satisfactory on all parameters and
recommended her appointment.
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VAMONA DEVELOPERS PVT. LTD.

Site Office : C/o. Phoenix Market City, Survey No. 207, Viman Nagar, Nagar Road, Pune - 411 014.
Tel No.: +91-20-3048 9319, 6410 6208

Particulars of Changes to the Board

The particulars of changes to the Board of your Company during the year under review and up to the
date of this report is as mentioned below:

e Resignation of Mr. Amit Kumar (DIN: 05301971) as Director of the Company w.e.f. June 9, 2023.

o Mr. Lalit Jain (DIN: 08715049) was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. August
04, 2023. The shareholders at their Annual General Meeting held on September 18, 2023 approved

to appoint him as Director.

e Mr. Anshuman Bharadwaj (DIN: 10264304) was appointed as an Additional Director designated as
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. August 04, 2023 to August 03, 2028, subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The shareholders at their Annual
General Meeting held on September 18, 2023 approved to appoint him as Director and designate
him as Managing Director from August 04, 2023 to August 03, 2028.

e Mr. Anuraag Srivastava (DIN: 07604457) was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.
November 26, 2022. The shareholders at their Annual General Meeting held on September 18, 2023
approved to appoint him as Director. Mr. Anuraag Srivastava resigned as Director of the Company

w.e.f March 18, 2024.

e Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 06996110) was appointed as an Additional Director designated as
Independent Woman Director of the Company for a period of five years commencing from March
30, 2024 to March 29, 2029, subject to approval of members at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

e Mr. Amit Dabriwala (DIN: 00164763) resigned as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f
March 29, 2024.

e Mr. Ashwin Singhvi (DIN: 08713678) resigned as a Director of the Company w.e.fJuly 10, 2024.

e Appointment of Mr. Siddhesh Pradhan (DIN: 09506094) as an Additional Director of the Company
w.e.fluly 15, 2024, subject to approval of members at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

e Appointment of Ms. Neha Kapoor (DIN: 08730643) as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f
July 15, 2024, subject to approval of members at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Regd. Office : C/o Market City Resources Pvt. Ltd., Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate, R.R. Hosie ildi
: o 4 » R.R. B
Opp. Shakti Mills, Off Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011. E-mail infopune(;gymaurllgtr;?&%r' e
Web : www.phoenixmarketcitypune.com CIN No.: U45201MH2006PTC165253 .
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RAJIT KESARIA & CO.
B.Com, LLB, ACS

SHOP NO. 17, AAKRUTI CHS LIMITED, MATHURADAS ROAD, KANDIVALI (W), MUMBAI-400087
MOBILE NO. 97021 22860
E-mall:- rajitakesarla@yahoo.co.in,

csrajlitkesarla@gmall.com

FORM NO. MR. 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

C/o Marketcity Resources Pvt Ltd, R R Hosiery Bldg., ‘
Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Estate, Opp. Shakti Mills, |
Mumbai 400011

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U45201MH2006PTC165253) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company, the information to the extent provided by the
Company electronically, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to me and the reprcsenta?lons'madc by ‘the
Management, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company ha§ durir?g the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 3lst March, 2024, generally complied with the stat.ulory prOVlS].OnS
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes an.d cc3mp|1ance mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

and returns filed and other records made

i books, papers, minute books, forms
| have examined the papers, gl ey

available to me and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3

according to the applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

: Y and (he_eules made thercunder (Not
(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA") and %‘&3,”“ By
A

applicable to the Company during the audit period);

)
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(ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Bodrd of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to tL\e Company during the audit period)

1
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the

audit period)
Il

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
i

(e) The Securities and Exchange Boayd of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Boar<’1 of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 2018; (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to

board and general meetings.

(i) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 to the extent of

material subsidiary of The Phoenix Mills Limited (listed at BSE Limited & National Stock

Exchange of India Limited).

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the
d with the provisions of the AC/!.zl&fﬁyﬂﬁsM!}_ggtllallons, Guidelines,

Company has generally complie
Standards, etc. mentioned above. ﬁ—v“

~ < "Page20f5

COP : 13207 }°
. MUMBAI




| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance

with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent in advance, or at shorter notice in compliance with the applicable provisions of
the Act and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through with requisite majority.

I further report that as represented by the Company and relied upon by me there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the period under review, the Company has undertaken following
significant & material corporate events/actions having a bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to

above:

1) The Company has appointed Mr. Zoeb Fazal Ali Wala as Chief Financial Officer and Key
Managerial Personnel with effect from May 23, 2023 in place of Mr. Aditya Vikram who resigned
as Chief Financial Officer and Key Managerial Personnel with effect from February 18. 2023.

2) The Company has appointed Mr. Anshuman Bharadwaj (DIN: 10264304) as Managing Director
and Key Managerial Personnel with effect from August 4, 2023 to August 3, 2028 in place of Mr.
Arun Arora who resigned as Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel with effect from

March 10, 2023.

3) The Company has appointed Mr. Anuraag Srivastava (DIN: 07604457) as Director at the Annual
General Meeting held on September 18, 2023, nominated by The Phoenix Mills Limited, who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from November 26. 2022. Further,
Mr. Anuraag Srivastava has resigned as Director w.e.f. March 18, 2024.

4) The Company has appointed Mr. Lalit Jain (DIN: 08715_049) as an additional director on the
Board at their Meeting held on August 4, 2023, nominated by The Phoenix Mills Limited, in place

of Mr. Amit Kumar (DIN: 05301971) who resigned as director w.e.f. June 09, 2023. Further, Mr.
Lalit Jain (DIN: 08715049) was regularized as Director at[lhe Annual General Meeting held on

September 18, 2023.

5) The Company has appointed Ms. Shweta Vyas (DIN: 069961 10)-45an ,Aﬁdg!itional Director En(jt(?)r
the category of Non- Executive Independent Woman Director Q!:thLUmDﬁﬂ\ W -i-f- March. 50,




2024 as per Section 149(6) of the Compames Act, 2023. Further, Mr. Amit Dabriwala (DIN:
00164763) has resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f. March 29, 2024.

6) During the period under review, the Company has entered into Leave and License Agreement
with Alliance Spaces Private Limited (“ASPL”), fellow subsidiary to use and occupy given ASPL’s
premises viz. Unit Nos. 2, 3 and 4 admeasuring 599.68 square mtrs. (6,455 square feet) of carpet
area equivalent to 9,231 square feet of chargeable area on the sixth floor of “Fountainhead-Tower
3” situated at Viman Nagar, Pune on a leave and license basis as office premises.

7) The Company has transferred unspent CSR amount of Rs. 88,10,053/- (Rupees Eighty Eight
L.akhs Ten Thousand Fifiy Three Only) for the financial year 2022-23 to Aakar Charitable Trust on
August 08, 2023 for an on-going project of Construction of Check Dams.

Further, out of the total CSR obligat{ion amounting to Rs. 1,47,44,116/- (Rupees One Crore Forty
Seven Lakhs Forty Four Thousand One Hundred Sixteen Only) for the financial year 2023-24, the
Company has transferred Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees Ten Thousand only) to Aakar Charitable Trust on
March 29, 2024 for aforesaid on-going project. The balance unspent amount of Rs. 1,47,34,116/-
(Rupees One Crore Forty Seven Lakhs Thirty Four Thousand One Hundred Sixteen Only) was
transferred to unspent CSR Account of financial year 2023-24 on April 29, 2024.

FFor Rajit Kesaria & Cou.
\(ED’“\R/

O
Rajit Kegria \ \nCOP 132(9(\*
Proprietor z,x\\tv/(

UDIN: A028256F000775354
Peer Review Certificate No. 2963/2023

Membership No.: A28256
COP No.: 13207

Date: July 19, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Appendix A to the

Form No. MR. 3’ and forms an integral part of this report.

' ('?'3
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‘Appendix A to the Form No, MR, 3*
To. .

The Members,

VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
C/o Marketcity Resources Pyt Ltd, R R Hosiery li-ldg

Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Estate, ( Shaleti M
» Opp. Shakt
Mumbai 40001 | P. Shakti Mills,

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibilj ; )
o R ponsibility of the management of the ¢ ompany (0 maintain secretarial records, devise
S . . . . . . g
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and
to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. | believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is
adequate and appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. I have not verified the correctness and appropriatencss of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

6. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

7. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules. regulations,
standards are the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the veritication

of procedures on test check basis.
Disclaimer

8 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For Rajit Kesaria ‘5‘90
% K~

- &7 TNEN

'“;.:) ' TRIRE (\
( —~Ale?( M. No, A2B256 YO 1}
al 4+ COP:13207 ). )

o . A MumBal S
Rajit Kesaria N : '/

e/ 4

Proprictor Ny S8

Membership No.: A28256

COP No.: 13207

UDIN: A028256F 000775354

Peer Review Certificate No. 2963/2023
Date: July 19, 2024

Place: Mumbai Page 50f 5



VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

C/o Marketcity Resources Pvt Ltd, R R Hosiery Bldg, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Estate, Opp Shakti Mills,

Mumbai- 40001
Tel. No.:022 3001 6600 Email: corpaffairs@phoenixmills.com
CIN: U45201MH2006PTC165253

1.

|N

Annexure 1l

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

Preface

The Company understands the importance of attracting and retaining highly talented
individuals at all levels of the organization. The Company and its management endeavor
to recruit and retain employees who achieve operational excellence and create value for
shareholders. The Company believes that a transparent, fair and reasonable process is
vital for determining the appropriate remuneration at all levels of the Organization. The
Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the
"Committee") to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to
compensation of the Company's directors and other senior level employees.

. Objectives

The objective and purpose of this policy are:

e To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who
are qualified to become Directors (Independent, Executive and Non-Executive) and
persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial positions.

e To recommend to the Board, the appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

e To determine criteria for remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
based on the Company’s size and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies.

e To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial
and Senior Management Personnel and provide necessary report to the Board for

further evaluation by the Board.

e To provide them rewards linked directly to their efforts, performance, dedication and
achievement relating to the Company'’s operations and growth.

e To lay down policies to retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term
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C/o Marketcity Resources Pvt Ltd, R R Hosiery Bldg, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Estate, Opp Shakti Mills,
Mumbai- 40001
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sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage.
e To devise a policy on Board diversity.
3. Definitions

‘Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from
time to time.

‘Board’ means Board of Directors of the Company.

‘Committee’ means the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as
constituted or reconstituted by the Board from time to time.

‘Company or the Company’ means Vamona Developers Private Limited.
‘Director(s)’ mean Director(s) of the Company.

‘Independent Director’ means an Independent Director of the Company appointed
pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

‘Key Managerial Personnel’ means key managerial personnel as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013 and includes

() Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a
Whole-time Director;

(i) Company Secretary; and
(iii) Chief Financial Officer

‘Senior Management’ means Senior Management means personnel of the Company
who are members of its core management team excluding Board of Directors
comprising all members of management one level below the executive directors,
including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and

not defined herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from
time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

4. Policy
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This Policy is divided in two sections Part A and Part B. Part A covers the appointment
and nomination related policies. Part — B covers remuneration related policies.

4.1. Part A - Appointment and Nomination

4.1.1 Criteria for Board Membership

The Committee shall take into account following points for appointment of a
person as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his / her appointment accordingly.

e Shall possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he
/ she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide
whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

e Shall possess the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity, values and
moral reputation and be eligible to hold the office under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and the Listing Agreement and
the applicable policies of the Company.

4.1.2 Additional Criteria for Independent Directors

In addition to the criteria mentioned above, a person proposed to be appointed as
an Independent Director shall meet all criteria specified in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

4.1.3 Term / Tenure

The Term / Tenure of the Directors shall be in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

4.1.4 Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules
made thereunder or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations or the
applicable policies of the Company, the Committee may recommend, to the Board
with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management
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4.2

Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and
regulations.

4.1.5 Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the
Company. The Board shall have the discretion to retain a Director, KMP, Senior
Management Personnel in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

4.1.6 Policy on Board diversity

The Company believes that a truly diverse Board would be necessary for effectively
managing the affairs of the Company. Diversity in terms of the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other diversities between Directors is
essential to enable the Board, as a whole, to achieve the desired results for the
Company. These distinctions shall be considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and when possible shall be balanced appropriately. All
Board appointments shall be made on merit, in the context of the skills, experience,
independence and knowledge which the Board as a whole requires to be effective.

Part B - Remuneration and Perquisites

The Committee shall recommend the remuneration to be paid to the Managing
Director, Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel to the
Board for their approval. The level and composition of remuneration so determined
by the Committee shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the quality
required to run the Company successfully. The relationship of remuneration to
performance should be clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The
remuneration should also involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working
of the Company and its goals: The remuneration / compensation / commission etc.
shall be subject to the prior / post approval of the shareholders of the Company
and Central Government, wherever required.

4.2.1 Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Executive Director
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Besides the above criteria, the remuneration / compensation / commission etc to
be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Executive Director etc. shall
be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force.

4.2.2 Non executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of
sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof as may be
approved by the Board and shareholders. Provided that the amount of such fees
shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force. An
Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock options of the Company.

4.2.3 KMPs / Senior Management Personnel etc

The remuneration to be paid to KMPs / Senior Management Personnel shall be
based on the experience, qualification and expertise of the related personnel and
governed by the limits, if any prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force.

5. Disclosure

The Criteria for remuneration of Directors shall be disclosed in the Directors Report.
The Policy and evaluation criteria shall be disclosed in the Directors Report.

6. Review
The Board shall periodically review this Policy to determine its appropriateness to the

needs of the Company. The Board shall have the authority to amend the Policy, if
required.
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14th Floor, Central 8 Wing and North C Wing
B S R & CO . LLP Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center

Western Express Highway
ClaETSeACoutants Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400 063, India

Telephone: +91 (22) 6257 1000
Fax: +91 (22) 6257 1010

Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Vamona Developers Private Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Vamona Developers Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described In the Audftor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

S

$R LT T T T e ) N i
| Management's and Board of Directors' Responsihil

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and -maintenance of adequate
intemnal financial controls, that were operating effeclively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Registerad Office:

B S R & Co, (a partnership firn with Registratian No. BAB1223) eonverted Inic 8 S R & Co. LLP (8 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco [T Park 4, Nesco
Limited Liabiity Farinarship with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from Oclober 14, 2013 Cantar, Westom Express Highwsy, Gorsgaon (Eas(}, Mumbal - 400063
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Vamona Developers Private Limited

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concem
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements .

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

o
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Vamona Developers Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 43 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the Note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Intermediaries®), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as

disclosed in the Note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ji) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with.
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Vamona Developers Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provision of Section 197 of
the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of
the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Viren Soni

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24117694BKFTSH9959
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(@) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@  The inventory, comprising of finished commercial premises has been physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable
and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies
were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more
than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examjnation
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3jii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act’). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it). Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(vii() (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in raspect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Income-Tax or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute are as follows:

(wiii)

(®9 (a)

4

[ .
| Name of the Nature of Amount (Rs. Period to Forum Remarks
| statute the dues in lakhs) which the where , if any
amount dispute is
relates pending
Income tax | Tax 0.63 AY 2010-12 Commisioner | None '
Act, 1961 deductedat of income tax
source (Appeals)
Finance Act, | CENVAT 331.55 April  2008- | PrincipalCom | None
| 1994 Credit March 2011 missioner of
CGST and
Service tax,
Pune-]
Finance Act, | CENVAT 834.56 April  2006- | The None
1994 Credit March 2011 BombayHigh
Court
CGST Act, | Goods and | 1,039,15 FY 2017-18 | Assistant None
2017 and | Services Tax and 2018-19 | Commr. of
SGST  Act, State Tax
2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
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BSR &Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(€}  According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

() The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

(U] The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

() (@ The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (8) Based on examination of the baoks and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xit) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.
) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.
(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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BSR &Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanation provided to us, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as per the provision of Core Investment Company (Reserve Bank)
Directors 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been ho resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
) 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (@) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a
Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the
financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said
Act.

(b) Inrespect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special
Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with Section
135(6) of the said Act.

ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

b

Viren Soni

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24117694BKFTSH9959
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)i) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vamona
Developers Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

o

Management's and Board of Directors’ Respo

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directars are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

| Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

‘Meaning of Internal Financial

« _;"gl_rqlg. with Reference to Flil_:taln_cial'Sta_témebt:s_

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

Page 10 of 11



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Vamona Developers Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBS R& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 117694
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24117694BKFTSH9959
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Vamona Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31 March 2024

1.

Corporate Information:

The Company is a deemed public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, as applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located 2nd floor, R.R.
Hosiery Building, off Dr. E Moses Road, Mahalaxmi (W), Mumbai - 400011.

The Company is engaged in development and leasing of commercial and retail space. The principal place of
business is located at S No. 207, Viman Nagar Road, Pune 411 014.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated May
10, 2024.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, read with section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and other provisions of the Act, as amended.

The material accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are same as used in preparation of
annual financial statement ended on March 31, 2024.

Material Accounting Policies:

a) Functional and presentation of currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency and all
amounts are rounded to the nearest in rupees in lakhs except otherwise stated.

b) Basis of measurement:

The Financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.
e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

¢) Use of Estimates :

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as
on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are described in Notes No. 4. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
ogcur,
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d) Properiv. Plant and Equipment:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Capital work in progress, and all other items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such cost
includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives as specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The residual values
are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful lives and method

of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life (in years)
Land & Building 60

Plant and Equipment 15

Office Equipment

IT Networking 6

Computers 3

Furniture and Fixtures 10

An asset’s carrying amount i$ written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation on additions/(disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (upto) the date

on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed off). Gains and losses on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount.

These are recognised in the statement of in profit or loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment at 1 April 2016, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, was
determined with reference to its carrying value recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost), as at the
date of transition to Ind AS.

e) Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs and wherever applicable, borrowing cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. When significant parts of the investment
property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
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specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
as incurred and cost of obtaining operating lease is capitalised.

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the straight-line method
over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life
Building 60 years

The Fair value of the investment is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Fair values are
determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

f) Intangible asset:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets are considered as 5 years. Intangible assets are amortised over its
useful life using the straight-line method. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The cost of Intangible assets at 1 April 2016, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, was
determined with reference to its carrying value recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost),
as at the date of transition to Ind AS.

g¢) Impairment of Non — Financial Asset:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generation
unit’s (CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a
aroups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amoun‘r, the asset is
idefed impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. =
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k)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transaction are taken into account, if no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Inventories comprise Land and Realty work in progress representing properties under construction/
development of commercial project.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of realty construction / development
comprises all cost directly related to the project and other expenditure as identified by management which
are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the project (net off incidental
recoveries, receipts). Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instruments of another entity. Classifications of financial instrument are in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement and as per the definitions of financial assets, financial liability and
an equity instruments.

Financial Assets and investments

1) Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value (other than financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss) plus or minus, in the case of a, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

ii) Subsequent recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the company’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. For the purpose of subsequent recognition and
measurement financial assets are classified in four categories:

b\_\'_\
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® Debt instrument at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

e Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and presented
net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

e Equity instruments:

All equity instruments are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain /loss is
recognised through profit or loss if such investments are held for trading purposes. The fair value gains
or losses of all other equity securities are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

1) De-recognition:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised i.e. removed from Company’s financial statement when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from asset have expired or

e The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation (o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under ‘pass-
through’ arrangement and either;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Financial Liabilities:
i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.
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iii)

ii)  Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and has
designated upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

De - recognition:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of financial asset to the
gross carrying amount of financial asset. When calculating effective interest rate, the company expects cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses.

K) Impairment of Financial asset:

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

¢ Financial assets carried at amortised cost;

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables. e OV

I
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Trade receivables or contract assets.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognise impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL. is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed
to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis further the company also
factors collaterals in the form of Security deposit while arriving at loss allowance.

I) Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non -- current:

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities
in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

m) Equity share capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to the issue of
new equity shares are reduced from equity, net of taxes.

Revenue Recoonition:

Revenue from license fees and other operating services

Revenue from license fees is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the
non-cancellable lease term, unless there is another systematic basis which is more representative of the time
pattern of the lease.

Revenue from operating services is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of
‘control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects
{o'receive in exchange for those services, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for exdinple
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p)

taxes, duties and other charges collected on behalf of the government/ third parties. Consideration is generally
due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is recognized when it becomes
unconditional/receivable (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due).

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with
the customer.

Contract asset

A contract asset (Trade receivable) is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs part of its obligation by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration when that right is conditional on the Company’s future performance.

Contract liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A contract
is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an asset the Company assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability of a physical distinct asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the
decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

As a Lessee - Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. At the
commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which comprises initial
measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

As a Lessee - Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily dbu.m'uned the
lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. INAN
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q) Employees benefits:

(i) Short-term Employee benefits:

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within 12 months rendering services are classified as Short Term
obligations. Benefits such as salaries, wages, shot term compensated absences, performance incentives,
expected cost of bonus and ex-gratia are recognised during the period in which the employees renders related
services.

(ii) Post-employment obligations
a. Defined benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit plan comprising of gratuity. The Company’s obligation towards gratuity
liability is funded and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value of the
defined benefit obligations is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and (c) the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss in subsequent periods.

The expected return on plan assets is the Company’s expectation of average long-term rate of return on the
investment of the fund over the entire life of the related obligation. Plan assets are measured at fair value as
at the Balance Sheet date.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation and expected return on plan assets is recognised under
employees benefit expenses.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment
or settlement occurs.

b. Defined contribution plans

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the Company contributes fixed
contribution to a government administered fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund, Labour
Welfare Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution
plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which employees have rendered
services.

(i) Long term Employee benefits:

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present value of the other long
term emaployee benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance
Sheet ::te/n Indian Government Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.
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t)

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as income or expense.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs.

Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
commercial assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Such qualifying assets take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using the government securities interest rate for the
equivalent period. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is no longet a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Income Taxes:

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities
using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and creates provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax:
Deferred Tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred Income Tax is

determined using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the
reporting period. s

iy




Vameona Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31 March 2024

Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right and intends
either to settle on net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

u) Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Optionally convertible debentures issued by the company are considered as potential equity shares and have
been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share.

4. (Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on
the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates
and judgement, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(a) Depreciation and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values
of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar
assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

/
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(b) Investment Property

Fair value of investment property is based on valuations performed by an accredited registered valuer. The
fair value of the Company’s investment properties has been arrived at using discounted cash flow method.
Under discounted cash flow method, cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of cash flows are
discounted. The main inputs used are rental growth rate, terminal yields and discount rates which are based
on comparable transactions and industry data.

(c) Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. The Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates.

(d) Defined Benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(e) Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take place
many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and
adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

(f) Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(g) Fair Value measurement:
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on the quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgments and assumptions.




Vamona Developers Private limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
L Nanscurront ssvets
T'raporty, plant and equipment 5 6,505.95 7.772.04
Tnvestment property [ 48,542.83 49,041.93
Investrosnt yeoperty under construction (including Capitol wark in progress) i 4041 64.97
Flusnelal sasets
Investinents B 34,615.83 34,096.22
Other finoncizl asscts 9 2,126.17 1,953.72
Peferred tux asset (net) 10 1,576.94 2,57L11
Clifier nan-current assets 11 §70.82 559.45
Tuatal non-current nsscts 94.2768.95 96.059.44
2| Curreol ossets
Inventurics 12 493.65 493,65
Financial nxels
Trade receivables 13 2,203.95 2,765.56
Cosh ond cash equivolents 14 21,762.40 451.60
Baok bulaaces other than cash and cash equivalent 15 6,440.00 14,514.00
Other financial sssets 9 642,17 504.22
Uithier current assets 1l 199.58 303.50
Tutal current essets aL,741.7S 19.032.53
Talal assely 1.26.020.70 1.15.091.97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
|
Ejuity sh 16 9,830.77 9,830.77
Cilier equity 17 72.622.96 59.128.42
Tatal equity %2,453.73 £8.959.19
T Liabintles
Nun-=current Babilities
Finamzial liobitities
Borrowings 18 28,44733 30,304.99
Other financial linbilities 19 2,603.08 2,631.50
Provisiem 20 115.65 11115
(her non-current linhilities 21 135.52 193.08
Tutal mon-current Uabillties 3130158 33,245.72
3| Curreat Uabllitles
Bomowings 22 1,857.65 2,498.06
Trade payables 23
i) total nul:undi.ngjua of micro enterprises ond small enterprises 34954 48.08
i) tola] outstanding dues of creditars other than micro
terprises and small i 1,299.57 2,049.03
Other financial liabilities 19 7.016.82 6,35936
Pravisions 20 29.09 2224
COtlier current [inbilities 2( 1,512.79 1,655.35
Curest fux liabilities (net) 24 199.93 25494
Tutal currcnt Uabillties 12,26539 12,BR7.06
Tutal Uabliltles 43.566.97 46,131.78
Tistal pipuity nost Hakilites 126,020.70 1.15.091.97

See nccompanying notes to the finoneial statements

The accompanying aotes are an integral part of the {inoncial statemeats.

As per our repart of even date

For,BSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountunts

Flrngliy, fom :\'lu. 1012483WNAY-100022

Partner
Membership No. 117694

Place: Mumbai

Date: \Ly Ma_‘* )-m,q

For ond en behalf of the Board of Directora
Vameons Deyelopers Privare limited
CIN: U45201 MH2006PTC 165253

Anshuman Bhar
M NO: 1026304
~

Place: Mambai
Date: {0th May 2024

Fozal AR Wala
Financial Officer
PAN : ABLPH6720]

Place: Miaubai
Date: 10h Moy 2024

Kb

Ashwin Sing
Diréétor

DIN'NO: 08713678

Place: Mumbai
Date: Hith My 2024

Allera Singh Salankd
Comyiany Secretary
M Mo :AB3527

Plece: Mumboi

Date; 10th May 2024




Vamona Developers Private llmited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Partlculars Year Ended Year Ended
Nate No. 31st March 2024 31stMnrch 2023
Income
1 Revenue from operations 25 29,734.95 28,134.86
i Other income 26 2,216.24 2,427.20
Tolal income 31.951.19 30,562.06
Il |Expenses
Changes in inventories 27 - -
| Employee benefits expense 28 1,084.30 1,072.46
Finance costs 29 3,074.07 3,324,726
Depreciation and amortization cxpensc 30 2,245.50 2,(12.55
Other expenses 31 8,002.20 7.689.68
Total Expenses 14,406.07 14,199.45
v I'rafit before tax 17,545.12 16,362.61
Income Tax expense
Current tax 32 3,067.68 2,712.80
Deferred tax 32 993.23 1.,230.07
Total income tax expense 4,060.91 3,942.87
v |Profitfor the year (A) 13.484.21 12.419.74
VI |Other comprchensive Income
a) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement pains/ ([osses) on defined benefit plans 052 4.05
Change in fair value of investments 14.06 36.40
b) Income Tax relating to the Item that will not be reelassified to Proflt (4.25) (11.78)
VI |Other Comprehensive Income for the year (B) 10.33 28.67
VII |Total camprehensive income for the year (A + B) 13,494.54 12.448.41
Earnings per share (Face Value INR 10 each) 33
Basic esmings per share 14.02 12.91
Diluted earnings per share 14.02 1291

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, BSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Ageountants

Flrm R tlon No, 101248W/W-100022

Partner
Membership No. 117694
Place: Mumbai

Date: {4 W M

For and on behalf of the Bonrd of Dircctors

Vamona Developers Priva

CIN: U45201MH2006PTC165253

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th May 2024

/’

"./_h\ Zaeb Fazal Ali Wala
\ Chief Financial Offlcer
hN PAN : ABLPH6720]

Date: 10th My 2024

te limited

tﬁ:)-' "_1: L“ -

Ashwin Sinfhvi
Director

DIN NO: 08713678
Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th May 2024

J Shuph Solonki
Company Secretary
M No :A63527

Date: 10th May 2024

N,

_e—t

s



Yamona Develapers Private linfted
Statemceat of cush flows for the year cuded 31 Murch 2024

(Armuict i (NI Lakbs, enlens oy b wated)

See sccompaiiying notes w the financial setemands
The accompanying noles ace an interal port of the finaacial setements.

Az per our report of et eu date

Far, BSR & Co.LLP

Lt
'w._lﬂll'l'!\\‘M'-WWu

| Mfemberalip No, 117694

Ploce: Mumbui

> |4 My -2054

Veur cuded Year ended
Parilvulans 3t March 2024 31 Mucch 2021
[Canh How Lreim operalfog acthiiles
Profit before lax 17,545.12 12,419.73
AdJusiinenis for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,245.50 2,112.55
(Gain)/Loss on fair valustion of invesiments measured at FVTPL 30554
Sundey balances writien back ((IREL]]
Finance cost 1,074.07
Tnlerest Incuane on inlercarpurale deposit {1.542.94) (9210
Travision fus loss altewes 61.53
Rebale and seidcment ALY
(hperativg profitoss before working capltal changes 20.509.0%
Chsngen In working cspltal
Deercase / (Increuse) in Inventories -
Decrense in Trade Receivabies 31167 4804y
Increuse in Other Recelvables {207.45) (14710
Decremie / (Inerease) in Other Finaniial Ascts (157.89) 1,452.50
Increase / (decrease ) in Trude Payables (2uE95)! 1391
Incredse / (Jeereuse ) in Other Payahlex {40,80); 1,183.30
Tiwrease in Provision 134 3142
Cash gencruted from aperations I AITNN
Less; [ncome taxes paid (Net) LLI2260)
Net cash Inflawa/ured [rem/in opersilng activitles (A) 17,5814
&l Maw fram Investing aciivitles
Paynient for praperty, plait and equip i [itazicrty a1 i ible nscele {45570 (HGT.46)
Tnter Carporsie Depatils & Leans (placed}refunded (Met) - 12,400.00
Invertiment [ Hedeomable Prefirenee Slunesequity In urd Optionally Fully C ible Deb - (20, 336.40)|
Tnveatment / (redempiion) of Fixed deposit 8,074.00 (1021154
Tnicrest Received 139034 a2 10
Nit caah Inflows/used from/In Inveating activitles (D) ERE AT
Cash Oow [rom financing sceivitles
Long Term RS T.08) (LU AL)
Short Term {08, (&,111.03)
Interest on the Loans (2.747.35) (332478
Payment of Equity Shure itsue Expenses . (13,64
Proceed from issuc of Shares at o premium - 1463237
Net cuily fuved from/ln financing uctivities (C) [EETERT) 438191 |
Nl fncryane/ (decivase) [o cosb and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 21,310.80 (981.54)
Cizids nud cash eyuivalents i the beginning of the your 45140 [N ET]
Ly i) ey eqpuivatonis ot e end uf the year 11,783.44 asi |
Recuneiliafron uf vasks smd cash syguinulenis ae per the esah fow stalement
Cash and eaak equivalenis comprlse (Refer note 1<)
Balmees with banks 2076154 450.51
Cash wnd cagh eqirivalents fap 1.6
Torst ensh anid cash equivalents 31 ead of the sor 11,8240 AL
(hanes | arising fram financlng aeil liles an ut 31-03-2024
Chzage in Ul sriving fram flnsuciog seth e 01-Anr-23| Cashi hlavemnen!® Alminnig
Aorowin JLU0G05 (1.457.74) 30,4531
A2 3t VI-p3-1813
Chaure In llsbilltics arislue from Noanclig aeilvitles 01-Apy-13| Cash Alovem TGN
Bamusine 4026317 7480071 32,800.05
*There is DU NOA casly movesrent

The sbove cash fluw from operuting bctisities has been prepared nder the *Inilireet Mc#hod” ut set outin the lndian Aceounting Stundund (Tnd AS) 7 - "Statement of
Cash Flows® prescribed under the Campanies Act [Indian Accousling Sundond) Rules, 2015 under the Camponics Act, 2013

For and on behalf of Ihe Board of Directors
Vamowa Developers Private mled
CIN: ST 00LET U1 3283

,g\:- 3

Adhuia 85

Direcior

DINNU: 04713678
Ploce: Mumbai Plyce: Mumbai
Dale: 10th May 2024 Dale: 10t May 2024

i

Zreh Fazal All Wala o Slagh Sabankl
Ulilef Fiiuswinl Offices  Company Secrétary
TAN : ABLPH6720] A M tA0MS3T
Tlace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 1k May 2024 Diate: 10k May 2024




Yumena Developers Private linalted

Statewnzut of clanges b equlry for the year anded I1 Murch 2024

{Ammunt In INR Lakhs, unlesy otherwise stated)

\) gty share £apiiad

Far \be year ended 31 March 2024

R SRl L

Viren
Tariaer
Membership No. 117654

Place: Munbai

Lo W‘?”"""

CIN: nmmtlma:;uuw

DIV NO: fazaind™, |

Piuae Mumbai
Date: 10th Ny 2024

ot Fazal All Wala
Ol Tinsnelal Oficer
PAN : ABLPHS20)

Fase: Mumbai
Blate A0HM Khay 1020

1,83,07,110 (V.03.2023: ¥,83,07,710) Equity Shares of Re.10/- each Amaant
Balaoce a5 at | Aprll 2023 1,071
Changes in Eyuity Sharc Capital due to riar period arrora | -
Rraluted Islanes un ot L Aprll 2023 1 sanr
(Cheaga in cquity share eapltal during the current yoar | -
Tabance as a2 30 Mrrek 2034 [ smvrr
For tha year snded 31 March 2013
9,8,02,710 (31.03.2U22: R,96,69,424) Equity Shares of Re 18- ech Amount
Dalsace us ot 1 Aprll 2022 896654
Chanyes in Equity Share Capital due to prioe prriod aan -
Restated balance mn at 1 April 2022 LY66.94
Chaay in eyuity share eapital during ihe current year 863,83
Dalance ap st 31 March 2023 9,000.77
{1} Other equlty
o st wwar emnbnid 3 Alurch 7024
Reserve and Surplus Other Ceatprahenaive Incoine Tatal Equiiy
Seewslili G 1 R St ahia alee
wrllim cazrsl elalned re and werulnal vafes of
Particularn Pramlum | Reterve | Earalngs | Based . Equity “ ofnat e p
Payment [wat) wroeuts
l_ . froc defned beuedt plann sbsrn
Msilwee we o | April 2021 54,12501 97124 2603634 3as 5., 1945 {13,04499) ,11841
Clanyes in seeouniing podicy or neior nered emors o - - - a - - -
Aeninted bslenee ax mt | Apri 2023 54,11832 93224 1603614 Mas 15, 15.1 (32,044.99) 59,128.41
Profil for Uie yair - PaM2I - - - [FETTET]
Change i the faic vabua of equily instrumenus through FVOCT - = = 497 - 997
i S . . . . 0y ,
Dalimer ui w30 Murglh 2024 5411532 932,24 51035 3426 BT .02 fRL0LEY}
ne the s ear ool A1 haech 2524
Resarva and Surplis Oler Coagrra bomidve bussws Takal
Sccwlilm | Geocral | Relalued | Bbare e iy
Partlculars Prealuy Ruerse Earningx Bused Equity Remeasurcmeat sEnet | red hle prefaresce
Paymaut | Tostruments at defned benefit plans LA b
Reserve Fyoct L b
Baluncer wi ot | Apeil 2022 40,090.42 91224 13,516.40 16.78 (22,844.5%) 3261048
(Changar in accountiilg poticy er pring period errory - - - - =
Rastated balance ga nt Apell 2022 40,050.42 932,24 13,61640 - - 16T (21,044,99) 3261088
| Profit for Lhe yoar - 1241974 - - - . 12419.74
Praniun a ltsue of share duriog the year (BSOF) 14,060.54 3 & = . a 14,068.54
Stare batal juyment G3.64) - - M2 - . . 062
Change in the fair value of cyuity msiroments thraugh FYOCT - - - - 25.80 2M - 267
Oslunes as 0t 31 Mareh 2021 54,11532 93224 2601614 3446 a5u0 15.65 (AL,044.99) 59,1842
Seo accompanying noses ta the fioancial tsicnienls
The scconpunylng roles are an inkegrul part of the Rncindal cstemans,
As par aur report of even date
Far, BSR & Ceo. LLF For und on bebelf of the Board of Dlrector
Chartersl Az " Vamsoua fhevelepers Privets limlted

B

Direcler
DINNO:; 08713478

Flace Mumbal
Ve B0k Moy 2834 4

Adirys Siogh Sedankl
Campany Searetary
M No:A63517

e Aot of
Thats s 204




Vamana Developers Private limited
Notes forming poct of the Finaneial Statements (or the year ended 315t March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs_ unless otherwise staled)

5

601

604

606

607

Praperty, plant and equipment

firine Carming Asnnun heprrcchabinn Neb Carrying Argnun
; Asat o Thypasaie! Asat Asat Depreciation  Disposald Ay at Asat As at
R 1 Al ghdiitions Tratr S Sisehaose| | UANISRIS Foritesesh Toamtes 3 March 20231 apri 20
Frachald Land - . - - S e : < . = 1
Buildings 23495 . =] 2,344 98 184 57 37 . 22180 2,123 14 2,160 3%
Pianl and Machiner: (.787 4 2K2 505 1.719.72 1.054 90 116 63 39 1.137.63 602 10 7325)
Vehiches 411 411 291 LRV 340 0.71 120
Fumiture & Fixtures 403773 266 2771 4.363 25 3.k 90 140 55 2202 376923 5§94 02 TRR R4
QMee Cquipment 131,519 82 65 20 19437 13.390 64 9,459 09 23113 154 76 10.235 46 31558 4.060 73
Ledsebnld Improsements - i - - -
Cinigrinkes & N évvorking 325 40 12 a0 i1d 204 6% AL p N [ 25 AL Tl A Fi ST
{ Tatal 2151943 B3 563,10 113132 11R47.40 faH2t RALRR) 1553307 hS08 98 T3
Crou Carrying Amount Deprcciation Met Careying Amngut
e Disposals/ Az at Asal Depreciation  Disposals As at As at Anat
bl N Additions Tf.:]l\_&r M March 2023 | | ) gt 2022 t'u-'-l e ypar tn"mn; 30 March 2033 | | 31 March 36381 Aprd 2082
Freshuld Land - . - - - - - - -
Waildiryn 234495 . = 234495 147 44 T3 - 184 57 2.160 38 219751
Fizn and Machinen 1.745 59 41 %43 - 178743 2002 114 84 1.054.90 73253 405 57
Wehigles 41 - 411 242 049 291 L2¢0 169
Fumipits & Fixtures 4.63773 4,637 73 1.7 OR 157 81 3.%48 90 TRE B4 946 65
(#/lic# Equipment 13.519.82 - - 13,519 R2 BA517 24 941 81 . Y.459 09 4.060 73 5.002 54
Lxichusld [mprosemens . . - - - - + . - -
Compates & Navirkag 308 74 16 67 - 12840 210 08 (] - 21 IEI7 1% 66
Tatal 2L.5h82 x50 - 2261044 13.588.32 128947 - 1ERAT A k7] EOTLal

Investmend Property

Graws Caraying Amuount : Beprvciation Net Carvying Amount
Paribentsrs Asat Additions Disperaty’ As at Asat Depeeciatlon  Disposabs’ Asat Asat Azat
1 Apot 2021 Tramfer 31 Mareh 2074 U Antil 2023 Forthe vedr  Teamifer 31 Macch 2034 1 March 2624} Aprdl 2022
Freehold Land 14.691 K1 . 14691 81 - - - . 14691 81 [ERCIR T
Itaghi on Leasehold Land - F . 3 r- . 5 = )
Huildings 415E233 $1220 42,084 53 JasL 3 Mgz LB LhE ) ixtie 3438012
[ Tat EhAME si320 - fa A0 34 F.82.2] 1,011.29 - n,223.51 A5EIIAN 49,04 5.93
Gross Carcying Amaunt Depreciatinn Net Csrrying Aniount
i Asal L Disposaly Az at Az at Depreciation  Dispesals! Asat Asat Asat
PArilinm VApritzazy  AMOns  yone  3iMardizons| | pAwdE2031  Vartbouesr  Tramfer 38 Mareh¥ory | | 30 ataichanis Auri 3033
Frechold Land (RN e - 1469581 - . - 14691 81 14691 8]
Rigght o Leaschold Land v . F : = 2 ]
Bearid i A.W74 5K 760 76 31652 55 LEERT tRsd]] LR NP dd4a2nd
[ Tutal Akl Thit.Te - TNITRT) REIAY . 7.2 19,041.93 ,133.65

The Company’s inrestment propertis consisis of Retail Mall and Commercial properties in India The Managemen! has delermined that the invesiment properties consisl of One class of asset - Retail Mall s
Cammercial Properiy - based an the nature. characteristics and risks of each ploparty,

Contractual Obligation
No C | i for Lhe isilion af inyestment

Capitalised Borrowing cost
No borrowing cosis were capitalised during the cunient vear and prenious year.

Invesimeni Property Pledge as sceurily
Refer note no 1R and 22 for delails of borrowings

Amount recognlzed in the statement of Prafit and loss for Invesimenl Prapertics

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Renfal Incame deri ed from Im estmenl Properties 2973495 | 28.134 86
Direct opermting Experses peneraling rental income 1.1GR 07 12361]
Profit ariging from investment properties before Depreciation and Indirect Expenses 28,566.88 26,898.75
L Depreciation 1,011 29 K53 4%
Profit from Leasing of Inveslment Proneriics 17.555.59 I5,045.77

The Company's imesiment properties consist of Relail Mall which has been determined based on the natuse. charactetistics and risks of each propeny. As a1 31 Mardl) 2024 and 31 March 2023, the fair y alues g
the properties are Rs 2,99.740 lakhs and Rs 2,85,240 lakhs respeciively.

The fair 1alue of invesiment property has been d. ined by external. independ i d property valuers. hasving appropriale ised professional qualification and recent d in the location s}
category of the property being valued A salualion model in dance with that ded by the i ional \aluation d ittee had been applied The Company oblains independent + 31
far its investmenl propeies annually and fair value measurement has been calegorised 3 Level 3, The faic value has beew armived using discounted cash flow projections based on relioble estimates of fislure cad
Nows

Leave and liceoce Arrangements:-
Investment properties are given on leave and licence basis 1o customers under long: lecm operating leases with monthly licence fees payments refer no 47 [or details on further minimum licence fees




Vamona Developers Private limited
Notes farmiag part of the Finanvial Sintements for the year ended 31st March 2024
{Amount in INR Laldin, untevs webicensise sinisd)

7 Investment property under constructicn

|hrm,m Asat1April | Expenditure | Capltalized | Impairment | Written off | Closlog as at31
3 during the year | during i vear March 2024
Tnvestment Prapery 6497 - 24 36 . =N 4043
[l’lrllrulln Asat 1 April Expenditure CapltaRzed Impsirment | Written off | Closing #s al 31
" 5 022 during the year | during the vear Marrh 2003
Investment Property 1707 4790 - . s 97
propertics under ion amounts 16 INR 40 41 lakhs (3| March 2023; INKH‘N lakhs)
The Managemeni is of the vicw that the fair valuo and boak valuo of i under lion canmoi be creliably measurcd and henee fair v alue disch ining lo i ™

under construction have not boen provided Capital wark in progreas have mot been plodged 1o sacure boowings of the company

7.01 (u) Agcing schedule as at 31 March 2024

CWIP Amaiund i Bjveiterient Prigeity f{’\\’)l‘l for u peelnd af
Lew tan 1 year 1-2 yesrs More than 3 Tolal
vears Agary
Projecty In progress
Proicet- | 258 06 10 it RIETH
J'l'llll 198 36 L 6.96 401

702 (a) Agciog schedule as at 31 March 2023

cwie St i Irvestimens Pro, CWIIM feig 3 yseriod o
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3ycars Mare tha 3 ifotal
i
Propeels in progres
Prodet- | 4790 1747 - . 87
Tolal 47.50 1107 = - a487

Financial Asacts- Investments

31Mareh 2020 || 31 March 2023 || 31 March 2024 || 31 March 2023
N3, of Beircu/ D

NONCUBERENT INVESTMENT

{Usspeirted

AT jlsvewument in Debenures

(i} Tmvestment in fellow Sulnidiaries

IOptisaally Fully Comvertitle Debentures of INR (0= each Fully peid-ap unfers otheryise stated)

Gracewnrha Reslty & Leiurs Prinate Limicd | 28,300 00| 28.300.00)
e
(0 (04435 (31 03.2023: 28,300) optionslly convertible debentures A 20,300 0| _3x.300.00
Al [Investment in preference shures
(i) Fellow Subsidiarics
Allisnce Spaces Private Limiled ¢ 17,36,50,000 17.36,50,000 3.958 12 3,631 3
(6.0001% 17.36,50,000 31 03.2023: 17,36,5(:,000) Redeemsble Preference shares
Palladium Conslructions Private Limiled * 9,46,77.366 9,46,77.866 2,154 14 1,979 43
(0 0001% 9,36,77,866 (31,03,2023: 9,36,77,886) Redocmablo Preference sharcs 1
B 611620 5.410.73]
UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS C
A (Invostment in equily instrumeats- Fair value through OCI i
(Equity Shares of face valuc of INR 10/- cach fully paid-up, unless atherwise alated) |
Renew Surys Kiran Private Limiled 213 213 19957 185 53
—— ]
c == |-_:_o_<gq 18350
Tatal { A+R+C) JLATRAY || 3409622

March 2024 || 31 March 2023

Particulara |

1. Aggregale Value of Quoled [nvesiment ¢
Book Value - -
Maskel Value ¥ 34 096‘12

2 1e Book Value of other Unquoted Tnvestment = 2
Aggrega qu | | 14006.22

{30 March 2024 31 March 2023
|

[Cntegnry wive Moo Current fniedments o s

Financisl Assels Measured at Cost za_‘:gg 2: zx_T:u; ::;
Measured at Fair value ihi C h ..

quncul Assols Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive o S0

Austs Measured at F-.rv- - lhmn-l- Pralit & { cee srenint |
1 361583 M.09622 |




Vamona Developers Private limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Anount in INR Lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

9 | Other financigl asyets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Accrued Interead
Fixed deposit with bank - 203 44 - 5087
From related parties 003 - -
From Others E 619 . 835
Other Receivables

From Other Recoverables - 1551 3819 -
Depsoit with others 205.98 1,660 00 -
Licence fees equalisation asset 23193 41700 25553 445 00
Other Bank Balance * 1.688 26 - < -

2.126.17 642,17 1.953.72 504.22

* Fixed Depasits of INR: Lakhs 28 26 Iakhs (31 March 2023: INR 44 8] Lakhs) is given as security for bank guarantee
*Fixed Depoasits of Rs. 16 60lakhs (31 March 2023: 4617.87 Lakhs) earmarked towards maintenance of DSRA as per loan agrecment

10 [ Defereed Tax Assets {Nel) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Movement in Deferred Tax iy s follows:
Urpening Balasce 2,571 381296
Lews - Tax charpe recognised in statement of profit and loss 2323 1,230.07
Lews : Tax charge ised in other prehensive income 094 1178
(loving Balance 1.5876.04 257h11
Recupnivnd!
Vear ended 31 March 2024 Opening Bat il mmm;:’:ﬂ‘;‘v':" Clasing Balance
income
Deferred tax assets:
On praperty, plant and equipment (470.01) 2371 . {446 30)
O provision for employee benefits 797 3.99 . 1196
Allowance for Payment basis 2970 (027) 2943
Allownnce for bad end doubtful debls 305 40 3394 - 33934
MAT Credit Entitlement 191264 (1.069.90) 184275
2,785.71 (1.008:25) 102TY 1.777.18
Deferred tax linbilities:
Finisticial Assets measured at FVTPL y
On Lease equalization Assets {203.99) 15.0 - (188 97)
On provision for employee benefits (067) (6.67)
Tncome / Expenses recognise under other comprehensive income . {10 60) - _IIO A0,
(214.59) 15,03 {0.67) {200.24)
Deferred tax assets (Net) 157111 (993.23) (0.24) 1.576.94
Recognised!
i ing Balance TrcoBnied/ (s ) dDinother g Ralnace
eur ended 31 March 2023 Opening Balance in Profit orlos camprehensive '4
Income
Dreflerred tax sasets:
n property, plant and equipment (498) 278 - (470 01)
O provision for employee benefits 92 (118) 797
Allwanee for Payment basis 297 . 29.70
Allmwanee for expected credit loss 564.3 (258 93) . 30540
MAT Credit Enlitlement ATIASR (R0 130 291764
3.512.96 11.026.08) (s 2.785.71
Deflerred tax liabilities:
On Lease equalization Assets {203 99) - {203 99)
Income / Expenses recognise under other. comprehensive income . [10.60) (10,60}
= {203,95) 110.60) (214.59)
Deferred tax asseds (Net) 381296 {1.230.07) {11.78) 2,571.11




Vamona Developers Private limited
Notex forming part of the Financial Statemests for the year ended 315¢ March 2024
(Amomm/ in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

11 Other assels 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non Curcent Current Nug Curreni Current
Depasits (Unsecured, Coasider Good)
Other Deposits 39008 . 28,94 -
Advances Given N o
Capital advances 11818 . - .
Advance to Vendors - 68 OF - 91.80]
Less : Provision for advances - 4.91) . (491)
Advances to Others e ¥ - 15 46
Prepaid Expenses 022 136 41 201 10
Balance with Government authorities 36234 430 51 -
‘Total ather non-current assets 870.82 199.58 559.45 303.45
31 March | 31 March
2024 2023
12 [Inventories
-Finished Realty stock 493 6§ 493,64
(At lower of cost or net realisable value}
493.65 493.65
13 Trade receivable
Curreal
31 Alarch 2024 3t Mureh 2023
(1} Considered Good - Unsecured 2,177.62 EREUSY]
(1) Significant Inerease in Credir Risk 404 {2
(¢} Credit Impaired TEY i) G |6
336437 ERIGEH
qu-‘-—':_*“'- avigsos fir expested credit (116042} (1.041,86)
2.203.95 2, 765.56
13.01 Ageing of Trade Recelvables
31 March 2024 5
Outstanding for following periods from duc dale of Receipts
Particulir 6 months 1-2 years 23 More than Total
Less than 6 months -1 vear years vesry 3 veurs
(i) Undi Trade rocei idered good 93132 23826 27101 10493 17625 1,715.67
(ii) Undisputed Trade Roceivables -which hase significant increase in 1012
erodit risk 22635 3721 Elba] 61 60 nn
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — crodil impaired 11165 1715 2575 5914 31665 53034
(iv) Dispuled Trade Receivables—cansidered good =
(v) Disputod Trade Reccivables — which have significant increase in erodit
risk
i) Dispetad Trade Heccivables — credit smparod B7.66 oA (TSR ?S‘J.?I
Undiilled trade recelvahle 461 98
Girons Trade Receivable 336136
Le: gt » | teil) (1,16042)
{Takal LIRNe
31 March 203 . .
Qutstanding for following periods from duc dute of Receipls
122 More th el
Parthculars 6 months 1-1 years ore than
Lexs than é months 1 year yean Years 3years
(i) Undispaled Trade roced idered good 1,402 15 366 66 M4 2 . 254218
(iiy Undisputed Trade Rece —awhich have significant increase in 3 ) i : .
erodit risk
(ifi) Undispuded Trede Roccivables — crodit impaired 2095 15,59 503.73 - 34.98 57158
(iv) Dispuied Trade Reccivables—~considered good . . # - -
() Dispuled Trado Receivables —which have significani increase in erodit . . =
risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 1379 253 133,58 :9,5:1;
[Unbitted traske veceis shie 3_'”; "
Grows Trade Roceivable 2
Lewy: Lo Attowsnge (Diputed + Vnidivsoted) Q1,043 56)
ThESE
Tatsl x




Vamors Develupers Peivate limiled
Nates larming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 3ist March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

14 JCush andf cash equivabents 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Datanc witl banks:
in current accounts 51154 45051
hponits with maturity of kess than 3 months 21,250 00 -
Cash on hamd UG 149
Tutal 2LTeLAN 45160
15 | lank balantes ether shian Cah sl carh equivaleate 31 March 2034 b
Fraeat drpvo s sw ek origimal inalurity ned ioee thas 12 months AT J2. 51800
4L 14,514 i

16 |Share capital

1601 [Lqisity shares

Amthsrian 31 March 2004 31 March 2023
10,43,00,000 Equity Shares (31 March 2023: 10.85,00,000) of INR 10 cach sty (L]
13,00,000 Compulsocy comvenible Prefarence share (31 March 2023: 15,00,000) of Rs 10/-cach 150 =
IS s
Issued, suberibed and puid up
1 45 07,710 Equity Shares (31 March 2023: 9,63.07,710) of INR {0 each ST SEMLTT
Tudd AR T TG T
G |Mocorzifizthon if o shiees oubindng 2 the berinng 2 ot the mnd of thesesr 3t Mareh 2034131 March 2023
Npbtbsee i [Nowloer of shares
Esperty Shares
(3aiitsinlng ot the beginming of the year 923,071,710 89669424
AV Shizre lasued during the year - 86,38,286
Chuetandirg 3t fhe el af the veae ARY07.I10 48357710
(i#} |“taren held by Holding Company : i Margh 2034 |31 March 2013
[F4uity Shures of Re 10 euch, fully pald)
by by
Ve Mwmv Wl Lad LE%aL 516 GA241 510
{iily | fhaits of shares held by sharcholders holding han 5% ol the shares in the Compam
wams o' the dvarckmlifer | 31 Matrh 2014 3 Mar-23
% of holding in % af halding in the
MNiruber af ehatey Alye clany Number of share clave
Figuits shars of Rs 10/~ cach fully paid
‘Tha Phocnix Mills L 6.59,61,516 67.10% 6,59.61,516 61.10%
22345,1 I 33340004 1290%

rtmn-.r.-.u g fades

**Puisaant ia Addiional Subseription Ajsemcnt dared June 10, 2022, duing the prosious perid the company hzs ieed K030.2H6 squity shares ef T 10 cach lo Reeo Zinnia
Prin gt Limibed a1 premoum of {62 99 per shars for 2 fotal eonsideration of € 14143 62 Lakha

7Ptz Conmpany Tray 2 sinile claws o equity shares. Aveordingly, 2 equity shares rak equally wilk regusd Lo dividends and shiaie in the Cormpam “s residaol assels oo winding
. Tt euguity shaves e cotitbed (o reeerve dividend 24 declared from time do live: The veting righis of an equity sharchelder on o pell (aid on thow of hands) av: m proporien
1 it shars 6 the psideup squity share capilal of the Company. Voding nghts eannat be exreised b retpext of shares on which any eafl or ether suing presenthy pay able have sl
szn paid

i1:4 For Uic period of five ycars immediatcly proceding the date as at swhich the balanec sher is prepared:
i -y of bom sheres

Eaquay Sjuares of Ra [0 ach fidly pauk ups 1 153K
o Jetails of Shared hield Dy Promoters at the end of the year
—— | 31 Mareh 2024 " 31 March 2023
- | No.ofShares | No. of Shares| % of total I%‘Ctmigudnring
IProrutiter name during the shares the year
year
Fn!gll\* shares of Rs.11) exch folly pald 5 |
attet s 6,59,61,516 67.10% 0ot 6,59,61,516 57,10%]
17| Onber rauity 31 Moarah 2024 31 Maceh 223
Cromral rescrve 03224 93224
y premium 5412533 $4.125.33
Employzc Stock optiars Jing sccount 3426 3426
sirph:s in the Statement of Profit and Loss 17475 35 399114
Oiher Comprehensive Incame :
Equity Insiruments at FVOCI sn 2580
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans M2 (K13
TI i E0. 284
17.01 | Employee Stock aptions vutstariding sceaunt A1 Margh 2034 31 March 2823
Balance at the beginning of the yaar 32 -
Add- Rocaenillon of thared based pavenenis - 3
Cliize Balame pa ey M
1702 {Securitics premmiom - Exquity 31 March 2024 31 March 013
(Dpening batance 5412533 40,090 42
Add  Sccuritics premium credited on share issuc - 14,064 54
s jusied sxgreies - (33 64)
41 3 54,1253




Vamona Devetopers Privale limited
Notes forming part of the Finuncial Statenients for the yesr ended 313t March 2024
(Amecund i INR Lakhs, unless othersise stated)

17.03 | General ressrve 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Opening balunee 93224 93224
Add HLeass) Tranelar during (ke e - F
Cloting halance #3034 932U
1704 |Surplus in the Statement of PFrofit and Loss 31 March 2004 | 31 March 7023
Opening balance 199115 (8,428 59)
Adih Nt precifin fot the cununt vess 11484 2| 12459 14
Cluving balsnce 1747535 399115
S B S L
17.65 | lnvesimenin FVTOCI Reserve 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
[Opemng balanee 25.80 .
Fair vahoation chanees for e vear finet of Lan affect) b 250
Cloviuy halapes v ' |
3577 2580
1706 | Rememunanent of act defined benefi plans 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2032
Opening balange 19.65 1678
-Nectieasnement gaine’ (e} on defined benelit plins (aef ol to} 037 287
Clmhlg lbatance . = 2002 l'l.G'T

Nature and Purpose of Reserves :

1) Genenal Reserve: Genernl Reserve is crealed from lime to lime by transferving profits from relained eamings and can be ulilised for purposes such as dividend pavout, bonus issue, e(c.

2) Securilies Premium: ilies Premium rep premium received on equity shares issued, which can be utilised only in d with the provisions of the C ies Act, 2013 for
specified purposes.
3) Retained eamings: Retainied eamings are the profits thal the company has earned Lill date, less any transfers o General Reserve, dividends or other di

paid to the

4) Stock Oplion Reserve: Reserve relates 1o siock oplions granied by the Holding company (o employees under employee stock options plm
5) Impact on inidal ition of i in prefe shares of group companies which is diffecence of fair value and Nominal value of Redeemable Preference shere as required under Ind
AS 109, financial instruments

(8 |Non-current horrewings |31 March 2024
Term Loan Trom Banks and Financial Institutions 3030498
30304.98
Eens: Cormenn nuaarisied of long Lo dety (1857.65);
Totil non curresi maturities of nou curreat horvowings 2544730 |

(Tevm Loan of Rs 30327 61 Lakhs [31-03-2023 :32803.49 Lakhs] {including Rs 185765 Lakhs (31-03-2023; Rs 2498 06Lakhs) shown in current maturiliea) which is Secured by fulure Lease
Renl Receivables and & pari pessu charge over the land and building of the Mall i ¢ Phoenix Marke(city at Viman Nagar, Pune ) Rale of interest on ferm loan is 8 78 % p a end repayable in
monthly instalmens.

18.01 Maturity Profite of Term Loan from Banta and Financial Institutions are set out below:

Financiah Year
P 20342025
FY 2025.2026
Y Zuzh2027 45100
FY 2027-2028 I
FY 202 0-2uY 1.13333
19 |Other ial liabilities 318t March 2024 | 3iwl March 2023
Other financial li ies 2t amortised cost Non-Current Current || Non-Carrent Current
Interest accrued but not due on loan T 178 - 7.78
Pxyable for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment - 149 . 334
Security Deposits from Occoparty/Licensess 2,603 08 7,008,.06 2,631 50 6,052.12
Others - - - 29612
Tutal nther financisl Babilivies A TIAN FH16.52 2.631.50 6503
20 [Provisians 31 Mareh 2024 | 31 Mareh 2023
Non Current Cyrrent MNon Current Current
|Provision for cmployee benefils
Provision for graluity 4355 1499 4221 100
FProvpon for sompenssted irehres 7210 14 10 a8 ud 224
Teral Provislom V1568 I0.09 1S 1234
21 | Other current labilities A1 Mareh 224 31 March 2033
Non-Curvent Current Non-Current Current
Stasutory due peyable (TDS,TCS,GST and PF) s 343,00 - 31470
((ther Babikiy - 157 96 - 32 :j
Advance [rom customer - 26139 . :75 b
Adeznce (rom others R 743 44 =
Adiance Remal 135 52 24201 198 N% 7!4_5_!'
Tuikal other current labifitics $35.52 LE12TY 198.08 1,655.34
2 [Current borrowinxs 3T March 2024 | 31 barch 2023
limsecured nt amartined cont
Short fuewyLons Seeurs) 1.857.65 2.49R
e ~S3Currant Muharity of Lesy rers Det 1.357.65 !‘J :
_ = | Tétal current barvaving £ 28,08




Vamana Developers Private limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statemeats for the year ended 31st March 2024
{Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Currenl

23 | Trade payables 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Totad outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* 349 54 48,08
Total outwanding duss of eraites other than micro enerprises and small entecprives® 1299.57 2.049.03
Total tende pasables 1,649.11 2,097.11
*The sbove informalion, regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

23.01 Discl relating to suppli gistered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

Particulnr 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
{ai} Amaurit remuning unpaid to any supplier a2 the end of eacy sccounting year:
Prmwipal 34954 48.08
Interes: 10.36
Trtal - =

the appointed day during each accounting year

the small enterprise, for the purpose of disall

(€) The amount of inlerest due and peysble for the
but without edding the iriterest specified under the MSMED Act

(41) The amount of interest nccrued and remuining unpaid ut the end af each accounting year.
(¢) The umount of further interest remaining due and

period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

Ao i e i

ofa

(13} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond

payable even in the succesding years, until such date when the interest dues sbove are acluslly paid io
under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

23.02 Trade Payables ageing schedule

31 March 2024
Particulars Quistandiap for followi iods from due date of Payment
Payables Not Less than 1 —u‘;‘v—r*,r il
Due g 12 years 23years  |More than3 yeary g

@MSME 194.87 232.07 874 4.02 731 447.01

| (i) Dispuled dues — MSME =

|(iii) Others 367.39 394,34 11.05 1448 414,85 120210

(1v) Disputed dues - Others &

Totnl 562.26 626.40 19.78 1851 422,15 1.649.11

31 Mareh 2023

Particulars Payables Not — Oulstanding for following periods from due dute of Payment —
Due vurm 1-2 years 2-] years More than 3 yeary o

() MSME 44.62 264 083 48.08

(11) Disputed dues — MSME 2

]‘ii! Others 692 24 78700 139 52 713 42114 2.049.03

{1v) Disputed dues - Others -

Total 692.24 831.62 142.16 7.96 423.14 2,097.11
24 | Current tas finbilities (net) 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

Current tax payable [net of advance tax] 199.93 254.94

Tolal current tax Knbilities 199.93 25494

Mavemien! in Provision:

At beginning of the year 254.94 -

Lesx: Charge for the year 5501 254 84

At the end of the yeur 199.93 254.94




Vamona Developers Private limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
25 [Revenue from operations 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Sale of Services

License Fees® 21,340.54 20,554.06
Service charges 7,283.62 6,690.36
Revenue from Parking 828.54 698.80
29,452.70 27,943.23

Other operating revenue
Marketing and Events Income 66.08 1341
Others -Recoveries 216.17 178.22
282.25 191.63
Total revenue from operations 29,734.95 28,134.86

~License fees and rental income including the revenue share (refer note no 47).

Details of revenue from contracts with customer recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss:

()| Revenue from contract with customers 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Survice charges 7,283.62 6,690.36
Parking and other allied services income 828.54 698.80
§,112.16 7.389.16
Other operating revenue 282.25 191.63
Total Revenue from operations §,394.41 7.580.79
(ii) Movement of Contract liabilities
Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 587.25 587.25
Amount received/adjusted against contract liability during the year - -
Performanece obligations satisfied during the vear = -
Amount jncluded in contract liabilities at the end of the year 587.25 587.25
Year Ended Year Ended
26 |Other income 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Interest income
From Financial Aeests carried at fair value through profit and loss 505.54 462.85
From Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
On Fixed Deposit 1,537.41 788.32
On compulsory convertible debenture 0.03 962.10
Others 5.50 7.40
Interest income on income tax refund - 31.18
Sundry Balances Writien Back 125.63 23.58
Provision for doubtful debt no longer required written back - 151.77
Miscellaneous income 42.13 -
Total other income 2,216.24 2,427.20

-




Vamona Developers Private limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 . L . Year Ended Year Ended
ges in inventories 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished Realty Stock 493.65 493,65
493.65 493 .65
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished Realty Stock 493 .65 493.65
493.65 493,65
Net decrease/ {increase) & .
Year Ended Year Ended
28 |Employce benefits expense 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 1,014.35 1,017.70
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 41.84 3757
Staff wellare expenses 28.11 17.22
Total employee henefits expense 1,084.30 1,072.49
Year Ended Year Ended
29 |[Finance costs 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Interest Expenses on financial liability measured at amortised cost 3,074.07 3.324,76
Taotal finance costs 3,074.07 3,324.76
Year Ended Year Ended
30 [Depreciation snd amortization expense 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment & Investment property 2245.50 2,112.55
Total depreciation and amortization expense 2,245.50 2,112.55
Year Ended Year Ended
31 |Other exp 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Electricity Expenses 1,717.11 1,669.43
Rent 81.94 11.78
Rates and taxes 515.13 416.77
Repairs and maintenence - Building 174.99 113.62
Repairs and maintenance - Plant & Machinery 291.48 297.25
Repairs and maintenance - Others 516.94 205.19
Travel and conveyance expenses 13.27 25.11
Water and gas charges 349 -
Commission and other transaction charges 9.23 10.29
Insurance 199.72 215.65
Printing & Stationery 6.94 4.95
Telephone, intemet and communication charges 12.56 11.43
Legal and professional charges 1,143.49 1,103.88
Advertisement, Promotion and Marketing Expenses 1,318.24 1,227.14
Directors sitting fees, remuneration and commission 220 2.60
CSR expenditure (refer note no 41) 14744 93.10
Manpower and Consumables Cost 1,132.44 1,104.84
Housekeeping Expenses 384.05 543.41
Donation 0.60 0.65
Audit fees* 24.36 14.18
Rebate and settlement 49.94 604.37
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 116.55 =
Loss on sale/disposel/ discard of fixed assets 115.16 -
Miscellaneous expenses 24.94 14.04
Total other expenses 8,002.20 7,689.68
*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of GST)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
As auditor:
- |Limited Review and Statutory audit fees 20.48 13.50
e
-10ut of pocket expenses TRT: 1418

| Fotal Wy




Vamona Developers Private limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
32 |Taxation 313t March 2024 || 31st March 2023
32,01 | Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss
- Current tax taxes 3,067 68 2,71280
- Income Tax Earlier Years z .
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 3.067.64 2T12.80
Deferred tax expense charged to the statement of profit or loss
~In respect of Curent Year ( Including Minimum Altemate Tax) 99323 1.230.07
Deferred tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 993.23 1,230.07
Year Ended Year Ended
Income ¢ax expense charged to OCI 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Deferred tax relating 1o items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss (4.25) (1L78)
Income tax charged to OCI (4.25) {11.78)
32.02 Year Ended Year Ended
Reconciliation of tax charge 31st March 2024 || 31st March 2023
Profit before tax 17.84512 16,362.61
Tax Rate 29.12%; 29.12%
Income tax expense at tax rates applicable 5,109.14 4,764.79
Tax effects of items that are not deductible in determining taxable income:
Additional allowances for PGBP (7.420.96) (4,335.10)
Expeases disallowed in Income tax 53855 22829
Other temporary (allo )/Disall - -
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss L067.68 2.712.63
Effective Tax Rate 29.12% 29.12%

7,
'S




Vamona Developers Private Fmited
Mates forming part of the Financiel Statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(Asngunit in INR Lokbs, unless ocherwise stated)

3 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

naimber 6 ofinly disces taktiedling diriny the vear,

Hanle earming; per shaes snoimns s cabintited by disidiing the po i ime flor alaz yier puribtatile b ety hailens Ty the neighted mer
Diliuted earminyg per share ansomens ase caloulitod by ‘& iding the rofitfios stonibanable bo equity holdsee {afler s, o
sharcs santitanding duriny b vepr e e o v orage by ol eqints sbores it winld be heived 2 &l 1he dilptive patengial sy vhates bk equlty dhares.

iivhe peeforeace shares) by the anphend avenge number of equity

The Jollowing reflecls the income and sharc data used in the basic and diluted EPS compulations:
Yesr Ended Year Ended
. . 30 March X024 S48 March 2025
ProfiL uttnl:uubl: 10 equity sharcholders [ERTEIT] .|rf Inu T
Profit b to equity sharehold 1308431 1341974
Weightod sverage number of equity sharcs for basic EPS Wil wELTITS
Weighied average number of equity shares L 3.61.TT722 S£171T
3o EPS
: . ing Per § © 1402 1291
Diluled Eaming Per Share (€ 14.02 1291
M Employee benellts
J401  Contribution te Defined Contribution Plan
Year Ended Year Frded
st March 2076 || 31t March 2073
Employer’s Contribution lowards Provident Fund (PF) 65 £
24 65

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund und pension fund far qualifying emphoy ocs (o the Regional Provident Fund Commissioncr

3.8 Defined benefit plans
The company provides gratuity benefit lo it's enployoes which is » defined benefit plan The present value of obligation is determined bascd on actuarial valustion using the Projocted Unit Credit

Method, which

recognizes esch period of service as giving risc to sdditional unit of emplayee benefil cnii and measures each unit scparately to build up the finel obligation The abligation for lesve in recagnised in
the same manner as gratuity
Actuarlal atsumptions Year Ended Year Ended
] 315t March 7024 Star Mareh 2023
Discount rate (per snnum) 720% 7.30%
Salary Escalalion Rale 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rale of return on asscts T7.00% 7.00%
Atritions/ withdrawal rate -0.001 200117
Morlality Rate [ALM(2012-14) TALM(2012 -14)
Ultimate Ultimate
The weightod average duration of plan 745 933 yeass
No of Employtes 71 7l
Average Age 1825 31359
Toial Salary 3020 29.9%0
Average Salary 043 042
Avenage Sarvice 5 4.96
Notes:

L Salary escalation raic is arrived sfler taking inlo account regular increament, priee inflation and pramolion and other relevant faciors such as supply and demand in employment market
2. Discount rale is based on prevailing market viclds of Indian Governmenl Sceurities as at balance sheet dalc for estimated Lerms of obligation

3 Autrition rate/ withdrawal rale is based on company’s policy Lowards retention of enployves, historical data and industry outlook.

4 Expecied contibution Lo defined beneflt plans for the next financial vear 2024 - 25 is ¥ 14,99 lakhs

5, Tho abose information is ccrlified by sctuary




Vamons Developers Private Limited
Motes farning it of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
[ Amcunt in INH. Laklis. unlets otherwiss stalzad)

i

w}

]

Changes b the present value of defined benefit abligation Emiplovee’s gratuity fung
Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Frewent value of obligation at the beginning of the year 96.24 REE
Lnkzsess eunt 702 680
Cument service cost 1244 nu
Bmcﬁls pnd' (586} (I
Actuarial (gains) / losses fram defined benefit plan KR} 13 9
Present value of abligation at the ead of the year* 1016 s
*lnciuded in provision for employee benefity (Refer nole 20) ==
Expense recognized in (he Statement of Profit and Loss FEmpleyee’s gratuity fund
Year Eaded Vear Foded
st March 2004 bt March 2023
Curvent service cost 243 i
Tnlcrest cost 702 680
Expected retum on plan asscls (387} {340
Total expe gnized in the S| Profit sad Loss* 1554 143y
*lncluded in Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 28) =
Year Ended Yeur Endal
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognized in other comprehensive income Slat Mareh I024 3141 Mareh 2023
Amount recongnised in OCI, Deginning of year N ) i
Actierinl changes arjying from changes in finsicial eszumptions 063 060
Actuariy| changes prising from changes in dorographic ssomptions = ot
Actusrinl changes mifaing fiom changes in o perionce adjusiments Ja :
Actusrial (Gain)l Losses A6T)
Returm on Plen assels excliding £nounts Included in net interest cxpense e 919
et Acturial (gein)iots recagnisd for the year air
ey

Amount recongnised in OCI, end of year

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are, as follows : Fmplosee's pratusty fumd

Year Ended Year Ended
__Miut March 2024 Map March 2023
QOpening balance of fair value of plan arsels nm LR
Espocied relum on plan asscls kX 1 352
Reium on plan assets (excluding smounts included in net inlcrest expense} wim 0I5
Conlributions a7 Q.90
Benefits paid 1586} (FR N
Closing balance of fair value of plan assets 4263 2307
Axsets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet: Employee's gratuily fiind
| Year Ended Year Ended
Mt March 2024 31t Muoreh 2023 |
Present value of obligation as al the end of Lhe ycar 1oL1g 4
Fair value of plan asscts ! 153,02
4313

Net saset / (liability) recognized in Balance Sheet*

Currenl Portion T
Non- Current Portion 4354 432
*Included in provision for emplayee benefils (Refer notc 20)

A quantitative sensilivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2024 is as shown below:

Enmpleyre's gratwity fond
Vear Eaded Year Ended
31st March 2024 || 315t Mareh 2023

Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discoun raic

1% inacase (593 59

1% docrease 6.66 165
Rate of increase in salary

1% increase 385 386

1% decrease (+12) “y
Expected return on plan assels

Plc:/:. increase ’ a0 L02

1% docresss Loy ({XE])

These gratuity plan typically expose (o Lhe company lo sciuaria) risks such as: imy estment risk, inicrest risk, longevity risk and salary nisk

Investment rish:

The present value of the defined benefiL plan liability is calculated using a discount ratc which is determinad by reference to marked viclds al the ond al the meperting peviod 90 government boads  For olher defined
bencfit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference (o markel vietd st the end of reporting period oa high quality corporate bands when ihere i o.deep market for such bonds, if the retum oo plan et js betow
this rete, it will create a plan deficil

Intecest risk:

A decrease in the bond inlerest rate will increase the plan liabi
Longevity risk: N o A
The presant v alue of (he definad benefit plan libility is calaulsiod by reference (o the best estimate of matality of plaa participants both dusing end afler their employment An inerease in the life expociancy of the plan
participanis will incresss the plan's linbility,

Selery ritk: . . L

The present value of the defincd benefil plan lisbility is caleulsied by reference 1o the future snlarics of plan participants As such, an increase in salary of plan panticipants will increase Lhe plan's liability.

v; bowever, this will be partislly offset by an iucrease in Lhe retum on the plan debl imestments




Vamona Developers Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(Amount in INR. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i) Malurity peafile of defined bencfir phligation aluity fund
s A
Year Ended Year Ended
- 30al March 2034 M 3 3
Within the next 12 months == 1157 et iﬁ:"
Between 2 (o § years a2m 184
Betwemn 5 10 10 years 1191 a1

H3 Unfunded scheme - Esrned Leaves

. Year Ended YearEn
Particulars o 00t March 2025 R1ET] ;\rnz:f-:u
Present value of unfunded obligations fan T
Expenscs recognised in the stotcment of profit and loss 745 2818
In other camprehensive income

Discount ralc {per annum) T T
Salary cscalation rate {per annum) 2oL 1 ':

15 Segment reporting
The Company is mainly engaged in real estalc activities Accordingly, the Company has only one identifisble scpment reporisble under IndAS 108“opersling segment™.
Enmnfﬂlf Brestet (15="chiel operaling diiciis mber defined in Ind-As 108 - operaling segr manilors Lhe operaling results of the entity's business for the purpose of making decisions
shoutrmames sllocstion and performance svasomeont.
The revenues from ransaclions with a single cuslomer docs nol amount lo L0 per cent or more of the enlily’s revenucs For brasd calegory of serviees rendered refer No 25

X Fair values of financial assets and financinl linbilities

| Vear Ended 315t Mareh 2024 Year Ended 31t March 2023
Caprving Advowni ¥air Vaive Camiog Aminn) Fab Value

Finandial assets
Financial assets valued nl amortized cost
Trode receivable 2,203 98 2.203.95 2,765 56 2,765 56
Cash and Cush Equivalents 512430 51240 45160 45160
Loans and Advances . - - -
Bark Balance other than sbove 29,378.26 29378 26 1451400 14,514 00
Other financial asscls 2,126,17 2,126 17 1,953.72 1.953 72
lovestments 6,11626 6,116 26 561072 561072

G217 64217 50422 504 22
Financial assets valued st FYTOCT
Invesbments .
- C Jsarily C ible Deb 199.57 19957 185.50 185 50

3 — |

Total fimancial axsets 41.178.7H 4LIT8.78 2598532 2598532
Financial labilities
Financial Lishilities valoed at amorfized cost
Borrawings - Varinble rte 3020498 30.304.98 32,803 05 32,803 05
Borrowings - Fixed raic - - -
Trade poyables and others 1649 11 164911 2,007.11 2,097.11
Other financial limbililies 941990 961990 4,990 86 A.090 /6
Total financiul linbilities 41573.99 4157399 43.891.01 4389101 |

Nolc - The Financial Assels above do not include investments in subsidiaries which are carricd ol cost in lerms of the option available in Ind AS 27 "Sepacate Finencial Ststements”

Falr Vatue biererchy of Finuncial asen fir value throagh FVOCT
|

Fair-Valag

Leve) 2 Significant | Level 3 Significant

Particulars S .
Level 1 Quoted Price in Active Market observable Input | unabscrvable tnput

- 19957

|

Fuir valuation technique:
The Company maisuains policies and procedurcs to value (inancial assets or financisl liabililics using the best and most relex and doto avsitable

The foltowing methods and assumplions were used (o cslimale the (air valucs
' Feir vatue of eash and deposits, Lrade reccivables, Lrade payables, and olher currenl iaancial assets md hisbilitics sppraximate thelr earrying amounts largely due to the short-L ilies of these
3 Bomowings we evaluoicd by the Company basod on parametess such as interest rales, specific country risk faclors, credit risk and ather risk charscieristics Fair value of variable inierest ralc borrowings spproximales
their carrying values Risk of non-pexformence for the company is considersd Lo be insignificant in veluation
3 The Financial Asscts sbove include investments in fellow subsidiaries which are carricd ol cost in lerms of the option available in Ind AS 27 "Separuic Financial Statcmenis™
4 Other financial liability and redeemable preference share fair valued using the discountod cash faw approach The valuation model consider the prescal velue of expected paymenyroecipt discounded using a risk sdparied

discounling mie.




Vamona Developers Private limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31gt March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stalod)

it

(V]

(s

risk ives and policies
The Compamy’s activitics expase ll to credht risk, liquidity risk and market risk  This nole explains the sources of risks which the enity is cxposed ta and how it mitigles that risk

Market rigk
Muarket risk u lhe risk that the l’li‘r value or future cash [lawa of a financial insirument will fluctuate bocause of changes in market priccs Market prices comprise three types of risk: curreney rate risk, interest rate risk
and other prico risks, such as equity price risk and dity risk Financiol i alTectod by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments in sacurilies

{i) Interest rate risk
Eluxctuation in fair value ar fuics can figuy of 3 fInancial instrument because of changes in market interest mies Bives fise 1o inlerest mle risk: Afmest 100% of the company ‘s bormossimgs are linked to Bank Rate +

Metyln. Margin may be agreed with the bz fram time lo time, With all other varisbles held consiant, the foflowing lable d pocs of change in iarcrea ral 09 borowiig cint on flosting rate portion of
Poarm
Inierest rale scnsitivity
Incessel idecregssl i bneresd eont of Livss bermbenanings (o the vest
Change in Rate Effect oa Profit{Less) before tax

of Tnterest :

2013-2024 | 2022023

H%/-1% 2063 | 3530l

(i) Price risk
The Company is not exposed b the comodity and olher price risk

(iii) Fereign currency risk
The Company is exposed (o insignilicant foreign exchange risk as t the respective reporting dates.

Credit risk
Credit risk i the risk of financial loss (o the Campany thal & customer or counler party 1o 2 financial i fails (o meet its obligalions. The Company is expasad Lo crodit risk from ils operaling setivilics
(primurily rade roocivables) and fram its financing solivilies, including deposits with banks, mutual funds, financial insttutioas and other financial instruments

Trade receivables and contract assels
The Compurny extynds evadit o csitreery b tonmial comece of bansiiess. The Commpany comiders Dietors sush 20 eredd tsek record i ths mmarket sl peit enlmes for svtemnion o erahit 1o eatisssens 1o manage crcdit

m-. ihe l.‘onqm persticallic sassusen the lnancisl rcfiabilits of the costomor, keling mio account the fincmeia! Conditian, erront evonomas irends, and anakysis of historical bind icdin and 2ping of 3tzoesty receialilss
|| Euttmrer ahiea wne seguidic ek o scsevmment of oconorbility Recervabibs e providad s dadufil ¢ writgen off, when there e bile espentation of resmems. Where
receivalien Imrltmu o ded f writies oY, the Compaany' confinass wezula Tollmoy . ewpage with ihe sustimers, legal options 2 any ather reniadios nuadlsble witli the ebjeetive of socoy ring thess cutitasdings

“The Comtamy i nol evponed Lo inesmzraoim of cradit riv 1 2wy one tingle cosimer suss serviess s provaded W0 ves specierm The Company abio ikez woanty deposite, ads anose, post dated dnequngu— fiom i

customen, which miligate the eredil risk Lo an extent

Cash and cash equivalents an other invesiments

The Campany is expased (o eounier party risk relating (o medium lerm deposita wilk banks.
The Company considers foclacs such a3 track record. size of the institulion, markel reputation and service standads (o selod the banks with which balances sod depasits arc maintained Gumlly.l]wbllanuim

mainlsincd with the institulioas with which the Company has alsa availed bormawings The Company docs nol mainlain significant cash and depasit balances other than Lhase cequired for its day to day operations




Vamona Developers Privat:
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31s¢t March 2024
(Amount in INR Lakhs, unfess otherwisc sioled)

Exposure fo credit risk

The gross carrying emoun of finaneial assels, nel of i the credit exp . The P to credit risk as al March 31,2024 and March 37, 2023 is as
lollows:
Asut Asat

31 Manch 2024 31 March 2023
Financial assets for which loss allowances are measured wsing 12 moniha Expected Credit Loses (ECL):
Oy Invesaments = -
Caiy and cash equivalents 51240 451 60
Think Deposits 29,378.26 14,51400
Laans - -
e financial nssets 2,708.34 2,457.94
|Financial assels for which Jos allowances ave measured wsiug Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
Trade recenabies 220395 2308 46
Lile tirrie Expeeted ctudit boss for Tradd receisbles under simplitied sppiech

Past Due

fAreid T Trade Resat s 30 days Fo-190days | 1B0-360days | over 390 days e
As at 313l March, 2024
Gross Carrying Amount 138176 31119 276 |4 1.394.68 3,384.36
Expoctad ¢redit losses (Loss allowance provision) 732 3594 3523 1,069.13 1,147.62
Net Carrying Amount 13714.44 27535 24091 32555 221674
As ot 31st March, 2023
Grogs Carrying Amount 269.24 230.04 1,410.65 135737 3,267.30
Unbilled Deblors 54212
Expecied credit fosses (Loss allowance provision) 489 9.02 111.3t 91k 64 1,043.86
et Cormving Ameunt 26435 12102 1,295.34 438.73 216556

Financial instruments and cash deposiis

The Company is exposed to counter party risk relating 1o medium term depaosis with banks, mutusl fund end debt securities
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the instilution, market i
maintalned with the institu(ions with which the Company has also availed borrowings.

Reconcllistion of impairment allowaace on trade and ofher receivables and contract aaset:

end service standards Lo select the banks with which balances and deposils are maintained Genesally, the bainrices si¢|

Recancilistion of Changes in (he lile (ime expecied credit loss sllowances Avat As st

31 Marsh 2014 31 March 2023
Loss ellowance on 1 April, 2023 1386 1,933.01
Less : Utilised during the year - (737,409
Less : Reversed during the year . (151.70)
Add : Provided during the year 116,56
Loss allowance on 31st March, 2024 1lah 42 1043 G

i) Liquidity rfak
Liquidily risk is the risk thal the Carmpam will not be able Lo mect ils financial obligations s they become due The Company manages its liquidily risk by easuring, as (ar es possible, that it will always have
sullicient Huidity (o imeet s Gabilities when due

The Company's objective is Lo maintain at all lime oplimum levels of liquidity (o meel ils cash and colloteral requirements, The Commpam’ relles o & miix of borrowings, capial infissian snd eweo operatieg cash
{lows lo meet its needs for funds The current borrowings are sufficient 1o meet its short lo medium term ion needs. M. framt i
the basis of expected cash flows

The Company is required to maintain ratios (such as debl serviee coverage raiio and secured mge rmulio) as d in the loan agr
risk of default in repayments. In the event of any failure (6 mect these covenants , these lonns becoma callable 10 Lhe exient of failure al the oplion of lenders, excepl where exemplion is provided by lender.

the Company's net iquidin position. threugh rolling forecasts on

ol specified levels and also cash deposits with banks 16 mitigaie e,

As at 31 March 2024

Particutary
Carrying Amount | On Demand Less than 12 monihy I-Syean >S5 yean Total

Domrowings 30,304.98 5 1,857.65 1,857.65
Other Fmancial Linbilities 9,619.90 7.016.82 2,603.08 - 9,619.90
Trade snd orher punables KSR - 164001 - - L3 11

As ot 10 Manch 2023

If

Favicelaty Carrying Amount | Oa Demand Less than 12 mantin|  1-Syears >5 yean Tolal
Borroavings 32,803.05 2,498 06 2,498.06
Other Financial Liabililies 8,990.86 635935 2,631.50 - 3,990.85
Trade end other pavables 2097.11 - 2007 )1 - - 2m71)




YAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

30 Related party Disclusures:

In accordance with the requirements of Ind-AS 24, on rclated party disclosures, the details of the related parties viz. names,

relutionship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments.

A Related party names and relationships

Sr. Na  [Name of the Related Party

Relationship

The Phoenix Mills Limited

Holding Company

2 Reco Zinmia Pvt Ltd Entity having significant
influence
3 Markel Citv Resources Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
4 |Allianee Spaces Private Limited Fellow Subsidiny
5 O3Theat Developers Private Limited Fellow Subsidiany
6 Palisdium Constructions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary
7 Alvssum Developers Private Limited Fellow Sulsidiary
8 Bellona Hospatality Services Pyt Limited Fellow Subsidiary
g Upal Developers Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidian
10 Girneeworks Resliy & Liesure Private Limited Fellow Subsidian
11 Pallzio Hotels & Leisure Limited Fellow Subsidinry
12 |Aditvis Solanki Key Managerial
: Personnel
13 [Swapnil Kothari Key Managerial
Personnel
14 | Anshuman Bharadwaj Key Managerial
Personnel
15 |Zueb Fazal Ali Wala Key Managerial
Personnel
B. Transactions during the year with the Related Parties:-
Sr. No. (Nature of Transactions 2023-2024 2022-2023
1 Inter Corporate Deposit Given
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Pvt Ltd - 15,800.00
Finesse Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited - 500.00
2 Inter Corporate Deposit Received Back
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Pvt Ltd - 15,800 00
Finesse Mall and Commercial Real Estate Private Limited - 500.00
3 Sccurity Deposit Received
Bellona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited 11,80 19.49
4 Investments in Optional Convertible Debentures
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Pvt Lid - 28,300 00
s Interest Income on ICD and OFCD
Offbeat Developers Pyt Ltd - 962.10

Upal Developers Pvt Ltd




VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Finuncial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

Sr. No.  [Nature of Transactions 2023-2024 2022-2023
6 Shure issued
Reca Zinnia Pvt Lid 14,943 62
7 Interest Income on Redeemable Preference share
Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd 326.82 299.83
Palladium Constructions Pvt Ltd 178.64 163.02
8 P'raject Management Consultancy Fees/Corporate Cost
(cxpenses) (Excluding Service Tax and GST)
Market City Resources Private Limited - Advisory Fees 51220 812.98
Market City Resources Private Limited - Property Mgt Fecs 82371 803.02
Mathet City Resources Private Limited - Shared Service 67.26 31.79
9 Parking Expenses
Alliance Spaces Private Limited -Parking Expenses 298 67 13874
10 |Other Expenscs
«ltona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited- Other Expenses 28.40 820
"allazio Hotels & Leisure Limited-Other Expenses 1.07
H  |Service Charges
Alliance Spaces Private Limited - Electricity Charges - Site 3532 495
Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd - Parking Income 142.19 79.25
Alliance Spaces Pvt Ltd - Water Charges 25.04 13.00
Alliance Spaces Pvt Lid - Repairs Maintenance (CAM) 23.01 5048
Bellona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited - CAM 8947 -
Bellonn Hospitality Services Pvt Limiled - Utility 44,04 -
Belionn Hospitality Services Pvt Limited - Licence Fees 633 4461
Bellung Hospitality Services Pvt Limited - Revenue Share 134.56 65.96
12 Remuneration
M. Arun Arora - 69.12
Mr. Aditya Vikram 25,79
Mr. Aditya Solanki - 419
Mr Anhuman Bharadwaj 58.34
Mr Zoeb Fazal Ali Wala 2499
13 Payment received against the outstanding receivable
Alliance Spaces Private Limited 267.66 1140
14 Licence Fee
fi¢ltona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited 68.17 80.82
15 |Director Sitting Fees
Swapnil Kothari 0.80 1.80
A Dabriwala 1.40 0.80
16 Interest on Optional Convertible Debentures
Grocewuorks Realty & Leisure Pvt Lid 0.03 000




VAMONA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024

C. Balances at the year end :
Sr. No. Nature of Balances As at 31 March, 2024 el :‘: zl;rlarch,
1 Trade Recelvables
Alliance Spaces Private Limited (Site Books) 144.19 247.04
Alyssum Developers Pvt Ltd (Site Books) -
Bellona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited 68.17
2 Finacials' Assets - Loans
Palledium Constructions Private Limited - RPS 2,158.06 1,979.42
Alliance Spaces Private Limited - RPS 3,958.12 3,631.31
3 Trade Payables
:I:;‘::: City Resources Private Limited (PMF+Adv Ser Charge - Site 21948 275.61
Alliance Spaces Private Limited 107.92 138.74
Pallazio Hotels & Leisure Limited 1.37
Bellona Hospitelity Services Pvt Limited 4.62
4 Unbilled Revenue
Alliance Spaces Private Limited - 11.10
Bellona Hospitslity Services Pvt Limited 12.50 14.41
S Depsoit Received
Bellona Hospitality Services Pvt Limited 3392 19.49
6 Investments in Optional Convertible Debentures
Gracewaorks Realty & Leisure Pvt Ltd 28,300 28,300
Interest on Optional Convertible Debentures payable _
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Pvi Lid 0.03 0.00
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Yamona Developers Private limited
Notes forming part of the Flnancial Statements for the yesr ended 315t March 2024
(Amount in TNR Labhs, unless otherwise sialed)

11 Additional information as required under Section 186(4) of the Companics Act, 2013 during the yesr:
Name of the company 2023-2024 2022-2023

i} Investment made in Body Corporate:-
In optionally convertible Debentures

Gracoworks Realty & Leisare Privalo Limiled Nl 23,300
wj  Lean given by the Company to Body Corporaies or persons is as under:

Name of the Compeny

Graceworks Resliy & Leisure Pyt Lad Ni| 15,300

Finessc Mall and Commercial Real Estale Private Limilod Nl S0

it No Guarantee is given by (he Compaiy

:
£}

2 Ceupital management

z mbun eraeagng eapilal i b s=rarr what b it o efficwie el s

The ey ehyeine af the Compam *s gl mestagesseat s b maimis the sharchatdee 1 ales. This Contzam Ty pranin
ke gy st rorarm for dhrcholifons. The Conpan Aluo popois e muiuan an

and healihy cagstal ration snct asfezuind fhe Casiam 'y chil 2 phing caera i oider 10 suppen it Hutiades asd pov

nptimal tapital tructeoe b reckice the sont ol papatal. N ehases were made in 1K vk ipodizics o p Gt il year el Naich 31, 2004 e Marsh 21, J423
Fiw the gaspooie ol the Compam *y sdpital rrstssedrent, capieal snchodes wand sapatal, 1hare prcsstom ied all othir squits restiues. Met et paeleden, batpreal boseitie baxes aml bostouings fow 22vh and whiet wrm
deposils

T As AL
!hdmﬂm 3103201

Ladna and Posvow ige 1w |

Leat: Coh snd eathy eqirontorms + fumd Dicposmy b= LT

Nt Tichi 31433

ot Captal [EEEEs]

Casuni=hee Db LR

Gesring Hatia [

43 Cemptingent listillitics sl contingent mzts
A, Dt licome Tav | lecluding TDS) liability amounting lo Rs.0,62 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 0 62 Lakhs) o the matier is in sppeal before Lhe Conulstioner of Incoar: Tax (Appeely),
B Dispulad CENVAT credit availment amounting lo Rs 331 55 Lakis (P.Y Rs 331,55 Lakhs) for the erind April 200% to March, 2011 and hearieg is wnder procers belore Commissioner of neome Tax {Appeals)

C Dispuied CENVAT credil availoent amounting (o Rs: 834.56 lakhs (P Y. Rs 834 56 IaLhe) for the period April 2006 1o March. 2011 und bearing i3 under process bofore Bombsy high cowrt,

The Comparm’ bt revicwed all ils pendimg ltization and cings wnd o iy prov el Loe where provisions are required and disclosl es contingent linbilitics where applicable, in ils
finanzial siaieosanis. The Company docs not rxpoct e owtbeme af thess pevccadivg teduane s maerially advizrss eflect on its linancial posilian
44 Certnin rade reecivobles and trado payables arc subject to ons and ilioti based on their is of the view that b impact of sueh difTerence, if agy, will not bave matensl

45 Additional reguletary infarmation requiced by Schedule Uf

Details of bensmi property held - .
No proceedings have boen initiated on or arc pending agaiost the company for holding benami property under the Beuomi Transaclions (Prohibilion) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and Rulcs mode thereunder

i  Borrowing sccured apaingl current asscts

The company has borrowings from banks and financial inslitutions on the basis of security of curvent asscts. The quarterky retums or sLaicmants of current assels filed by (be company will banks
inatilutions oro in sgreemant with (he books of neooanis.

and financial

i) Wilful defaulter

Campasy have not been doclared wilful defaulter by any bank or [inancial instltulion or g or any t aulhority
|1y Bslance outstanding with struck ofl companies:
Walwnre fﬁ'ﬂm
Name o Siriick aoff i with the ding ws at ding a1 et
Comnavicy Natare of T} jons |struck off company March, 31 2024 |March, 11 2023
MDC Enlertaiment
P Lid Mark=tl Creditor o 54 454

W) Camipliasce with gember of layers of companicy
Thie comspany s complicd with the pusshier of Tas o preseribed under (he Companics Act, 2013

i Camphi with d scheme{a) ol

The ceanpuss has mod enlered intn 6ay seheme ol anzezomenl wiich hes an accounling impaci oa current or presious financial year.

wil  Undisclosed Income

Tlteompmyhnnnlmnmdﬂuiordixlouduimduﬁnghmﬂwtwuﬂhﬁgwhmu‘ assessments under the Tncome Tax Act, 1961, that has oot becn roconded in the books of nooount

viii) Detaily of erypia currency oF virtial curreacy
ﬂwwym-ﬂmwh;ﬁinmwnm«\imlm during Lhe current or previous year

1 Vulustion of Property, plaat and £qsi i il arset wmili ropeTly

“The cmpany has mol cevelucd ils property, plant and equipment oc | Propertice (including right-of-usz ussei) or inongibl asscls during the current or preyioas year

W Title desds of lmnavalile Property not held In the same af the Cumpany:
The Title ook of lniovable Property are held in Lhe namo of the Company ooly.

1 Utilisatlen of Borrowed funds and Sbare premlum 1 -
V) Mo Ty e bicem sy ancad o foared or yeaatedd (eatker Froes bervened (bads or thess praminm pe sty thet seucs of i of ieasks by ihie Campany to oo g fthits porsan o siiny _ iachaling [eizign entilies.
™ Sissien™) it (e cnd g, sheiber rocoeded in v rRiig o o i, Shat e Tmrmedery shall ks o gmivess i ety skexisifiend by o op baliihTed'ihe Caiipaimy (UNimate Theselinart)

1113 The Cuniperin. bt med rocryeal ainfud frss o oy (Fisadimg [ty ) mil e nderviseuding hat R Coupammy 1l sehicther, izl oe infarestly ke o et ke clh=r posias o etales hnnlaal by aron

kit of thie Castpien {“Ulfiaste Bloeficiain™) o4 prinide 3y guatasee. secumy of = il o Bekalf 0 ihs Milimats baslis e




Vamerns Dhinalupars Pebvats Vialled

Neten Datulog part of ite Stondilene Fluanciel Stltments for (o year ended 3int Narch 1624

fAmeent {n PR Lakby, usless scharwise itstrd)

der Lexve s Licans ngroemans fos aof=eapiresd lock in perind s ut 315t March 2024 wod 3 15t March 2023 are o followy:

Fuature minl Liernse Fees h
[0k §akhal
Partieulars Withla one year Aler sne year but nat | Mare than five Total
mere than five years years

A o 31" March NL
2024 723541 1242247 1965708

Asan 31" March NiL
2023 182145 504957 12.87).02

& TheLeave and Licenae agresments sre generally for a period of | 10 3 yesrs. The (eritw also provide for escalxilon of License fers an a peviodical basis. Oanerully, Lhe
ourpany s & riuht (o fesiniate these nesnents by Siving advincs notice s stipulstal thersin,

Cantingont Liomso Foos cormprisiag of Revenas Share income (cammpuied as % of ales) churgad to the Licensoey daring the yeor 2 R [313.95 Lakin (P.Y. Re 130088 Lakhs).

Fipunu(iudinnhw:hbhmnpchwlMLlﬂ!clvM!i‘thMdﬂluMnymﬁvmu may be given,

A per oy fepot of oven date

For, 05 | & Ow, LLP

uby

\[e0 l\l\:“'-]iﬂ.‘l.‘:.‘
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Partnar
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Placz Mumbai

pue | Y mu}, oY

For and ovt hehalf of tv Board of Direclors
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CIN; L8201 MUSERETTC L 65250

| Ay hlrudea)
Mastegeg Mie
DI NGRS
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Date: 10th May 2024
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